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          1  EDUCATION AND TRANSPORTATION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Good morning.

          3  I am Eva Moskowitz, Chair of the Education

          4  Committee.  This is a joint Hearing with Council

          5  Member John Liu, the Chair of the Transportation

          6  Committee.

          7                 In the interest of starting on time,

          8  we are going to begin.  So, I call this meeting to

          9  order.

         10                 I'm going to apologize in advance, I

         11  am under the weather and didn't want to miss this

         12  Hearing, so I am here briefly, but I'm then going to

         13  get myself back to bed.  So, I apologize.  But, this

         14  is a terribly important Hearing, Joint Hearing, on

         15  the subject of busing and special education.

         16                 We are delighted that Mr. Oestreicher

         17  has joined us from the Department of Education and

         18  Mr. Altschuler from the Department of

         19  Transportation.

         20                 This Hearing came out of a sense that

         21  both John Liu and myself were dealing with a

         22  tremendous number of constituent complaints from

         23  parents about special ed. Busing and we were trying

         24  to deal with those on an individual basis and

         25  respond, when in the middle of that conversation, we
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          2  had the terrible situation on Staten Island, where

          3  the bus burst into flames.

          4                 Then, two weeks later, we had another

          5  situation in the Bronx, and we thought it was time

          6  to conduct an Oversight Hearing, where we really

          7  looked into how the various Departments decide which

          8  companies to contract with, what kinds of quality

          9  control measures they have, how they are responding

         10  to parent complaints, and fortunately, the CEC for

         11  special education had issued a report with some

         12  extremely helpful recommendations as to some of the

         13  changes that need to happen, including better

         14  training for matrons on the bus, the problem of

         15  communication on the bus and with schools and with

         16  the depot.  They had a series of recommendations.

         17                 Before we get into the substance and

         18  before I turn the microphone over to my colleague,

         19  John Liu, I want to first just comment about the

         20  information requests that we sent.  It is the

         21  typical practice of the Education Committee to send

         22  information requests, in writing, so that the

         23  Department is, in no way, blindsided by our agenda.

         24  We got these to the Department, both Departments,

         25  DOT and DOE, on April 7th.  We deliberately kept our
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          2  list of questions shorter than usual, because we

          3  were a little bit delayed in getting them to you.

          4  But, I have to say, the answers came back.  We got

          5  them yesterday, after 5:00, and those answers were

          6  incredibly thin. There were a number of questions

          7  that simply were not answered.

          8                 Mayor Bloomberg, I hate to quote him

          9  back to himself, but he has insisted over and over

         10  again that with his taking over the Administration,

         11  we're going to have a much more professional job and

         12  so forth.  And, while in general, the answers to the

         13  questions that we have given have been, I think,

         14  relatively good, this was a sub- par performance, to

         15  say the least.

         16                 Just to give you an example, we asked

         17  for on- time performance data for special education

         18  buses and got none.  We didn't even get an

         19  explanation that this information isn't available,

         20  which is the usual DOE, at least, technique, to

         21  simply say that everything isn't available.  But,

         22  just to not answer questions is not acceptable.

         23                 From DOT, I understand there was a

         24  lot of pushback and, John, you run the Committee,

         25  obviously in the way you see fit.  But, apparently,
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          2  this was the first time DOT was expected to give

          3  answers in advance and this seemed very out of the

          4  ordinary.  We do it, in part, because we don't want

          5  to surprise you.  We also do it because these

          6  Hearings are the only Hearings, the only opportunity

          7  for the public to understand what is and isn't

          8  happening, and we like to create a written public

          9  record of what transpired.

         10                 So, I would just like Mr. Oestreicher

         11  and Mr. Altschuler to take back to the Chancellor

         12  and the Commissioner that we expect you to answer

         13  all the questions that went unanswered and

         14  literally, just requires reading.  We're very

         15  explicit.  We state the question in writing and we'd

         16  like an answer in writing.  I won't go through all

         17  the instances in which that wasn't done, but, I

         18  would appreciate that.

         19                 I also want to say that my colleague,

         20  John Liu, and I sent a letter to the Mayor on

         21  February 18th and, again, last night, after 5:00, we

         22  got, finally, two months later, a letter from --

         23  here it is, from Chancellor Klein and Iris

         24  Weinshall.  It was an undated letter.  And, this

         25  Committee, call us sticklers, but we'd like to
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          2  conduct ourselves professionally. We date our

          3  letters and we like the Department to date theirs.

          4  It was undated and then when we asked for it to be

          5  dated, I mean, I find this very disingenuous, I

          6  assume you don't want to make it clear that you have

          7  just responded to our questions too much late, but

          8  it's obviously unprofessional to not put dates on

          9  one's letter.

         10                 In fact, we on the Education

         11  Committee feel so strongly about this, that we've

         12  actually put it in our IEP for the DOE, where we've

         13  said, this is a pattern where the Department does

         14  not date its correspondence when timing matters.

         15  So, I would like you to take that to the Chancellor

         16  that if we could have all of your letters dated.

         17  This is, presumably, what we're trying to teach our

         18  high school students to date their letters, so that

         19  they could be professionals, that would be helpful.

         20  We also are just disappointed that it would take the

         21  Department two months and clearly right before a

         22  Hearing, they're answering the letter is not

         23  acceptable.

         24                 Having said that, we look forward to

         25  your testimony and I know I have a series of
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          2  questions, but first, I'm going to turn the

          3  microphone over to John Liu, and I'll also introduce

          4  my colleagues, Council Member Robert Jackson on the

          5  Ed. Committee from Manhattan, and I'm sure other

          6  colleagues will be joining us shortly.

          7                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you

          8  Council Member Moskowitz.  Good morning.  My name's

          9  John Liu.  I have the privilege of Chairing the

         10  Transportation Committee in the City Council, and

         11  I'm delighted to co- host this morning's Hearing on

         12  the issue of special education busing.

         13                 These Committees, today, will examine

         14  the issue wherein each day almost 80,000 special

         15  education students are transported to and from

         16  school.  This is a large and important job and the

         17  task of providing this bus service is divided

         18  between the Department of Education and the

         19  Department of Transportation.

         20                 The operation of buses transporting

         21  students with special education calls for are

         22  increased scrutiny.  The students who take these

         23  buses are often helpless and at the mercy of the bus

         24  driver and the adult assistant on the bus.  Also,

         25  things that would not greatly affect other students
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          2  such as changes in schedule and changes in the

          3  duration on the bus can often have a devastating

          4  effect on special education students, who often rely

          5  on routines to help them learn and adjust.  A small

          6  change in schedule can often cause a special

          7  education student to regress. That is certainly

          8  something we seek to avoid.

          9                 Even more serious than the issue of

         10  changes in schedule is safety.  Early this year, two

         11  buses that carry students with disabilities had

         12  burst into flames.  One in Staten Island and one in

         13  the Bronx.  Fortunately, no one was hurt in either

         14  incident.  But, one of the buses was so damaged that

         15  State investigators could not even determine the

         16  cause of the fire. These potentially deadly fires

         17  raise questions about the oversight of these bus

         18  companies or the lack thereof.

         19                 It's important that all of our school

         20  buses are as safe as possible.  But, because of the

         21  vulnerability of special education students, it is

         22  especially important that their buses are not

         23  dangerous and that strict oversight is maintained by

         24  the City.  Unfortunately, these two fires, within a

         25  short amount of time, show that these special
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          2  education buses are not as safe as they ought to be.

          3

          4                 I want to talk about something that

          5  my colleague, Eva Moskowitz, mentioned earlier.  I

          6  want to relate to the members of the Department of

          7  Education that I recall in the second grade with Ms.

          8  Delitt (phonetic), at PS20, we were taught how to

          9  write letters and we would put the heading and then

         10  the date, the body, and then sign the bottom of the

         11  letters.  Ms. Delitt is in retirement now, but I can

         12  get in touch with her and have her give a briefing

         13  to the Department of Education on how to properly

         14  format their letters that I and many other school

         15  kids in New York City have had the fortune of

         16  learning about in the second grade.

         17                 You know, it's almost a joke, I know

         18  that's why some of us chuckle here and some of you

         19  may be chuckling at why we're bringing this up.

         20  But, we do expect that responses from the Department

         21  of Education be professional, and this is not the

         22  first time that their responses have not been

         23  professional.  It's seemingly trying to hide the

         24  fact that the responses to our letters were greatly

         25  overdue.
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          2                 At this time, let me turn it back to

          3  the Chair of the Education Committee.  I believe

          4  we're going to hear first from the Education

          5  Department and then we'll hear from the Department

          6  of Transportation.  Thank you.

          7                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  And I

          8  should add that for the Members of the Ed.

          9  Committee, we are going to have to take a brief

         10  moment to vote on school bus emissions bill once we

         11  have a quorum.  So, we will have to interrupt

         12  whoever is testifying and take the vote once we have

         13  a quorum.  Thank you. Please begin, either Mr.

         14  Oestreicher or Mr. Altschuler, and the light has to

         15  be off for the microphone to be on.

         16                 MR. OESTREICHER:  Thank you

         17  Chairpersons Moskowitz and Liu for inviting the

         18  Department of Education to testify about special

         19  education bus transportation.  I am Marty

         20  Oestreicher, Chief Executive of School Support

         21  Services in the Department of Education.

         22                 The New York City Department of

         23  Education runs the nation's largest special

         24  education transportation system.  The Department's

         25  contractors transport over 59,000 special education
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          2  students.  They ride 4,300 routes per day to nearly

          3  1,800 schools.  Approximately 51,000 of our riders

          4  are public school students, the remaining 8,000

          5  students attend non- public schools.

          6                 Our mission is to transport all of

          7  our students safely and reliably.  We contract with

          8  51 bus companies to supply transportation to special

          9  education students.  Special education students

         10  receive door to door service.  Every special

         11  education bus has an escort to further ensure the

         12  safety of the children on board.  We tailor our bus

         13  routes to ensure that any special requirements

         14  mandated in individual education programs are

         15  accommodated.  We also carry children, we carry

         16  children not only within the five boroughs, but to

         17  Nassau, Suffolk, Westchester and Rockland Counties

         18  in New York State, in addition to sites in New

         19  Jersey and Connecticut.  On a daily basis, we

         20  transport 2,567 students on 419 buses to 89 schools

         21  outside the City.

         22                 The Office of Pupil Transportation,

         23  OPT, understands the unique trust that parents place

         24  in us to ensure that their special children are safe

         25  and comfortable.  We meet regularly with special
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          2  education parent groups to understand and respond to

          3  their issues, concerns and to incorporate service

          4  enhancements that result from their suggestions.

          5                 For example, OPT has been working

          6  with the City wide Committee on Special Education

          7  and the District 75 Parents Presidents Council on

          8  upgrading the training program for our drivers and

          9  escorts.  The end result will be a standardized

         10  training program for all new escorts and uniform

         11  ongoing training for current escorts with tests that

         12  will be developed by the Committee.  Because the

         13  introductory training is generalized and the needs

         14  of the students we transport so diverse, we have

         15  also committed contractors in our new extension

         16  agreement to making the drivers and escorts

         17  available to school administrators, teachers and

         18  parents each school year to discuss and learn how to

         19  handle the individual needs of the students being

         20  transported on each run.

         21                 Parents not only expect safety and

         22  reliability, they want responsiveness to complaints

         23  and problems as they arise.  The Department

         24  maintains a hotline (718) 392- 8855, and encourages

         25  parents to use it whether there is an immediate,
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          2  urgent issue or a long- standing problem.  This

          3  year, the hotline has handled 132,000 calls.

          4                 However, there are instances in which

          5  parents may need to call one of our contractors

          6  directly.  Parents are supplied with the phone

          7  numbers of the bus depot that services their

          8  children.  We've received a number of complaints

          9  about the lack of responsiveness at these depots.

         10  In the new contract, our vendors will be required to

         11  maintain a minimum number of customer service agents

         12  during the year, with the amount doubled during the

         13  first weeks of the school year.  This will ensure

         14  that there will be a person available to assist

         15  parents when they call about late buses.  We believe

         16  this will go a long way towards relieving some of

         17  the frustrations parents experience when waiting for

         18  their child to be picked- up or dropped off.

         19                 Of course, the safety of our students

         20  remains our first priority.  We have expanded our

         21  aggressive inspection program geared to ensure that

         22  buses and their crews are operating at the highest

         23  safety levels.  The Department's inspection program

         24  calls for each bus in our fleet to be inspected by

         25  OTP, OPT, OPT inspectors twice per year.  These
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          2  include both announced and unannounced inspections.

          3  They take place in garages, as well as at schools

          4  and field trip destinations.  Inspectors check the

          5  credentials of drivers and escorts, to check if they

          6  have been properly certified and check the vehicle

          7  for safety equipment, such as two- way radios,

          8  proper signage, first aid kits, flashing lights, and

          9  stop signs.  The New York State Department of

         10  Transportation conducts its own vehicle inspections,

         11  concentrating on the bus' mechanical systems.  New

         12  York State Department of Transportation inspects

         13  every bus twice per year.

         14                 OPT is also enhancing its accident

         15  reduction program.  It will standardize strict

         16  guidelines for dealing with drivers who are involved

         17  in chargeable accidents or have received moving

         18  violations while driving a bus.  There will be a

         19  sliding scale of uniformed, progressive disciplinary

         20  action that will include retraining, suspension and,

         21  where warranted, removal of certification.

         22                 As part of its contract renewal for

         23  2006 through 2010, there will be a number of major

         24  service improvements that will benefit both students

         25  and parents.  In addition to the customer service
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          2  and training provisions previously mentioned, the

          3  extension calls for cleaners, cleaner school buses.

          4  Every standard bus serving our clients will contain

          5  an emissions filter by the end of 2006.  Depending

          6  on the filter used, emissions will be reduced from

          7  40 to 90 percent.

          8                 The Geographic Position, Positioning

          9  System on all buses by school year 2007/8.  This

         10  will allow us to track buses for safety and for

         11  customer service and operational requirements, such

         12  as on time performance.

         13                 Vehicle Vintage.  The overall age of

         14  the fleet servicing our students will be newer and

         15  there will be a cap set on the allowable age of any

         16  vehicle in service to our schools.

         17                 Air Conditioning.  The pace of air

         18  conditioning in special ed. Vehicles will be

         19  doubled, so that all mini wagons that service our

         20  special ed. Students will be air conditioned during

         21  the period of the extension.

         22                 We believe these provisions will

         23  enhance the riding experience for our -- excuse me

         24   -- special education students and enable the

         25  Department to offer an even higher level of service
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          2  than the comprehensive school bus transportation

          3  that we currently provide.

          4                 Thank you for the opportunity to

          5  testify.  I'd be happy to answer any questions you

          6  may have.

          7                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Mr.

          8  Altschuler.  Thank you.

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  Good

         10  morning Chairpersons Liu and Moskowitz and Members

         11  of the Transportation and Education Committees.  My

         12  name is Howard Altschuler and I'm the Deputy

         13  Commissioner for Procurement, Technical Services and

         14  Passenger Transport at the Department of

         15  Transportation, and I'd like to thank you for

         16  inviting me to testify here today.

         17                 Let me state from the onset that DOT

         18  is committed to our pre- kindergarten and early

         19  intervention transportation program and the safe --

         20  I'm sorry -- and the safety of the children is our

         21  highest priority.  DOT coordinates and oversees on

         22  behalf of the Department of Education and the

         23  Department of Health and Mental Hygiene, the

         24  transportation of approximately 17,000 children to

         25  nearly 300 pre- school programs.  The population we
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          2  serve includes pre- k children, ages three to five

          3  and early intervention children, ages from under one

          4  to three, all of whom have special needs.

          5                 DOT serves the young, vulnerable

          6  population, all of whom are disabled either

          7  physically, mentally, emotionally or in some

          8  combination thereof.  On any given day, our bus

          9  vendors transport approximately 10,000 children, as

         10  not all children attend school or therapeutic

         11  programs every day.  This translates to more than

         12  four million passenger trips in any given year.

         13                 To provide this service, DOT

         14  currently has 148 contracts with 38 transportation

         15  providers.  Contracts are competitively bid two

         16  times a year for three to sometimes five year terms,

         17  often with an ability to renew at the Department's

         18  discretion.  We closely monitor our bus vendors and

         19  rigorously enforce the terms of all of our

         20  contracts.

         21                 Our bus drivers are certified by the

         22  New York State Department of Motor Vehicles and each

         23  vendor must certify that its drivers have received

         24  the additional training required by the New York

         25  State Education Department.
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          2                 Bus escorts participate in a 20 hour

          3  training course that includes CPR and first aid.

          4  The New York State Education Law requires that all

          5  drivers in attendance receive pre- employment bus

          6  safety training and refresher training at least two

          7  times a year.  The bus companies arrange for the

          8  training and the trainers all meet State

          9  certification requirements.

         10                 In addition to certification

         11  requirements of the bus drivers, every bus undergoes

         12  mechanical inspections twice a year by the New York

         13  State Department of Transportation, which certifies

         14  them as safe for use on the road.  New York State

         15  DOT is responsible for ensuring that each bus

         16  complies with the terms and conditions of the

         17  contract.  For example, pre- k inspectors ensure

         18  that the driver and escort are each certified, that

         19  the safety features on the bus work, such as lights,

         20  two- way radios, and that booster seats and child

         21  seats are installed properly, air conditioning,

         22  which is required on 100 percent of our buses meets

         23  the requirements, and the bus is operating in a

         24  timely manner.

         25                 In July of 2004, we were able to
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          2  increase the number of pre- k inspectors from four

          3  to ten -- where was I? -- From four to ten, which

          4  enables the Department to respond more quickly to

          5  specific concerns and ensure that every program in

          6  the school is adequately inspected multiple times

          7  per year.

          8                 DOT also provides customer service to

          9  parents, schools and bus companies, to assist in the

         10  safe transportation of our children.  We have six

         11  members available from 8:00 a.m. Until 6:00 p.m. to

         12  assist with day-to-day transportation difficulties.

         13  Our staff is in regular contact with the vendors,

         14  parents and school directors, and work

         15  collaboratively to resolve issues such as bus

         16  lateness and mechanical problems.

         17                 We also have produced brochures in

         18  ten languages to explain our pre- k and early

         19  intervention bus programs to parents, which we make

         20  available to them through the schools.

         21                 Through our customer service unit, we

         22  are able to track concerns and work with appropriate

         23  bus companies and schools and parents to address any

         24  issue.

         25                 DOT looks forward to continuing to
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          2  provide transportation to pre- k and early

          3  intervention children of the City of New York, and

          4  we will continue to work with all stakeholders to

          5  provide the level of service these children deserve.

          6    We are dedicated to assuring safe and reliable

          7  transportation to these special citizens of our

          8  City, and thank you again for having us here, and

          9  we'll take any questions that you may have.

         10                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Thank

         11  you.  We've been joined by Council Member Mike

         12  McMahon from Staten Island, thank you for being

         13  here, and Council Member Oliver Koppell from the

         14  Bronx, Council Member David Yassky from Brooklyn and

         15  I see Council Member Leroy Comrie from Queens and

         16  Council Member Helen Foster from the Bronx.  As soon

         17  as the Clerk gets here we are going to, as I said,

         18  move to vote on an item that this Committee has held

         19  several Hearings on, as well as the Environmental

         20  Protection.  But, while we wait for the Clerk, I'm

         21  just going to begin my questions in the interest of

         22  time.

         23                 I have a few and I think it would be

         24  probably most effective if you can just try and

         25  give, they're pretty specific questions, just as
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          2  brief answer as possible, just to get through them,

          3  and then, obviously, if you want to elaborate in any

          4  way, you're welcome to do so.

          5                 In answer to question number one, you

          6  indicated that there are close to, that 77,000

          7  students who ride special ed. Buses, including

          8  almost 3,000 who are listed as "outside the City,"

          9  do these students live outside the City or do they

         10  attend schools outside the City?

         11                 MR. OESTREICHER:  They attend schools

         12  outside the City.

         13                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Okay.

         14  When I was looking at the chart, I was trying to

         15  understand why there are so many more students from

         16  Brooklyn than Manhattan.  It looks like more than

         17  just the difference in population between the two

         18  boroughs.

         19                 MR. OESTREICHER:  Keep in mind, that

         20  chart, the borough distinction is based on where the

         21  schools are, not where the children live.

         22                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  So, there

         23  are more special ed. Schools in Brooklyn than

         24  Manhattan?

         25                 MR. OESTREICHER:  I don't, that's
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          2  what it would point to.  I can't tell you that for

          3  sure, but that's, we broke out the numbers by the

          4  boroughs in which the schools are located.

          5                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Okay.

          6  Why is there such a large drop off in the number of

          7  children served between the top of the table, from

          8  what looks like pre- k, ages three to five, to ages

          9  five, six and seven?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  I

         11  don't have that information, I don't know why they

         12   --

         13                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Who

         14  produced the chart, DOE or DOT?

         15                 MR. OESTREICHER:  It's a joint --

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

         17  Well, it's a joint chart.

         18                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  I'm

         19  sorry?

         20                 MR. OESTREICHER:  It's a joint chart.

         21                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Okay.

         22                 MR. OESTREICHER:  The numbers you

         23  have from ages five up, which is our population,

         24  school age population, those are our numbers.  DOT

         25  provided the numbers on the younger than five.
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          2                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  So, you

          3  have no idea why there would be a large drop off?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

          5  Well, once they leave the pre- k program, they're

          6  not in our jurisdiction anymore. They go to the

          7  Department of Ed.

          8                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Right,

          9  but you guys talk a lot, presumably, no?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  We

         11  talk, but --

         12                 MR. OESTREICHER:  We talk, but --

         13                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  And when

         14  you looked at the chart, did you have any --

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  I'm

         16  sorry, you may want to note though that the 14,000,

         17  that's for three separate years.  It's age three,

         18  age four and age five.  The pre k group --

         19                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Okay.

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  The

         21  pre- k group is three, it's three years of age.

         22                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  But, if

         23  you add five, six and seven, which would also be

         24  three years.  I mean, yes, that's true, but I could

         25  add ages five, six and seven, and I guess maybe that
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          2  would be approximately --

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  The

          4  numbers are fairly close.

          5                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  I'm

          6  sorry?

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  The

          8  number, if you add the children five, six and seven,

          9  the number is fairly close.

         10                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Are

         11  approximately the same, okay.  That's helpful.  Are

         12  there any children not on this list that are

         13  transported?  For example, children that travel by

         14  ambulet, would they be included in these figures?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  If

         16  they're ours, yes.  Some parents make their own

         17  transportation arrangements, so we would not have

         18  those.

         19                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  And DOE,

         20  if they're traveling --

         21                 MR. OESTREICHER:  They're not on

         22  this, they're not on this list.

         23                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Okay, and

         24  why not?

         25                 MR. OESTREICHER:  Because, we thought
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          2  the question was about school bus transportation and

          3  not transporting on our buses.  So, the list we gave

          4  you dealt with yellow bus transportation.  That's

          5  what we thought you wanted to know.

          6                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  I'm

          7  sorry.  I'm having a little trouble hearing you.

          8                 MR. OESTREICHER:  That's what we

          9  thought you wanted to know, the number of kids

         10  transported on our buses.

         11                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  So --

         12                 MR. OESTREICHER:  That does not

         13  include the number of kids transporter on the

         14  ambulet --

         15                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  On the

         16  ambulet.

         17                 MR. OESTREICHER:  -- Which is about

         18  50 kids.

         19                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  50 kids

         20  per year?

         21                 MR. OESTREICHER:  For the City- wide,

         22  yea.

         23                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Okay.

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  I

         25  was just corrected.  Our, the children who are
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          2  transported by ambulet are not in our number either.

          3    It's just bus kids.

          4                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Okay, and

          5  why didn't you include them?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  For

          7  the same reason.

          8                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Okay.

          9  How many kids are you transporting?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

         11  Right now, we're not transporting any by ambulet.

         12                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  So, when

         13  Dick Condin (phonetic) did his investigation of the

         14  problem of bus drivers, vis- a- vis, ambulet, he was

         15  only talking about 53 kids?

         16                 MR. OESTREICHER:  Yes, that was, that

         17  was a DOE study.  At that time, I think it was less

         18  than 50 kids, at the time the study was done.

         19                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Okay.  I

         20  think we need to take a vote.  So, we're going to

         21  take a short break, and I apologize.

         22                 The Education Committee is now going

         23  to vote on an important piece of legislation that

         24  will reduce pollution from school buses.  Intro.

         25  428- A will require school bus operators who do
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          2  business with the City to install pollution control

          3  devices on their engines and to use ultra low sulfur

          4  diesel fuel.

          5                 When used together, these two

          6  technologies can remove 90 percent or more of the

          7  pollution that comes out of school bus engines,

          8  including the dirt and particulate matter that helps

          9  cause, that causes asthma in children.  The bill has

         10  been the subject of two full Committee Hearings.

         11  One on September 23, 2004 and another just recently,

         12  April 7th of this year.  At this Hearings, the

         13  Department of Education, the United States

         14  Environmental Protection Agencies, bus owners,

         15  advocates and others testified.  Based on their

         16  testimony, the bill was amended several times.

         17                 It is now in its final form.  The new

         18  law will require most school buses to start using

         19  ultra low sulfur fuel by July 1, 2006 and all buses

         20  to use it by September 1, 2006.  It also requires 50

         21  percent of the bus fleet to have pollution control

         22  devices installed by September 1, 2006, and all

         23  buses to have them one year later.

         24                 These requirements build on our

         25  successful efforts to obtain State money to retrofit

                                                            31

          1  EDUCATION AND TRANSPORTATION

          2  buses with these devices and reflects the leadership

          3  of many of my colleagues, and, in particular, John

          4  Liu, who is the key sponsor of this legislation.

          5                 Because Intro. 428- A concerns

          6  environmental regulations, it is subject to the

          7  City's Environmental Quality Review process, also

          8  called SEQR.  This means that the Committee staff,

          9  in particular, Donna De Costanzo, Counsel to the

         10  Environmental Protection Committee, and Mark Goldey,

         11  Counsel to the Education Committee, have prepared an

         12  environmental assessment statement, a copy of which

         13  has been provided to every Member of the Education

         14  Committee.

         15                 In accordance with SEQR law,

         16  environmental assessment statement concludes that

         17  Intro. 428- A, if passed, would have no significant

         18  adverse environmental consequences and would be

         19  consistent with the State Environmental Quality

         20  Review Act.  Therefore, staff has concluded, and I

         21  concur, that the Council should issue a negative

         22  declaration that says just that. The negative

         23  declaration is also in front of you and was

         24  distributed yesterday.

         25                 In order to bring it to the Council

                                                            32

          1  EDUCATION AND TRANSPORTATION

          2  floor for a full vote, the Education Committee must

          3  also vote on a preconsidered Resolution to adopt the

          4  negative declaration.  So, we will do that too.  For

          5  my part, I urge my colleagues to adopt both the

          6  negative declaration and Intro. 428- A.  Before we

          7  vote, I'd like to give my colleagues an opportunity

          8  to make a statement or any comments that they would

          9  like, perhaps beginning with Council Member John

         10  Liu.

         11                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you Madam

         12  Chair for your leadership in bringing this bill to a

         13  vote so quickly.  The problem is clear.  The problem

         14  is that the buses, notwithstanding the topic of

         15  today's Hearing, the buses that transport our

         16  youngest kids to and from school on a daily basis

         17  are dirty. They're dirty inside, but even more

         18  importantly, they're dirty from the fumes that they

         19  spew into the air and into the faces of our youngest

         20  kids.

         21                 The fact of the matter is that at a

         22  City- wide level, we've done a reasonably good job.

         23  This credit goes, I suppose, to the MTA, for

         24  cleaning up many of the buses that transport daily

         25  commuters to and from their jobs.  Now, we,
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          2  unfortunately, have not had the same standard

          3  applied to the little kids in our City who are being

          4  transported to and from school.  It is clear that

          5  without this legislation, we will continue to move

          6  at a snail's pace towards cleaning up these school

          7  buses.

          8                 These school buses not only spew

          9  fumes from exhaust pipes that are not very far from

         10  the height of the noses and the mouths of these

         11  little kids who are standing on the sidewalk next to

         12  the school buses.  Often times, the school buses are

         13  parked one right behind the other.  So, the fumes go

         14  into the school bus behind.  Often times, when the

         15  windows are closed in the winter times, they

         16  recirculate the air inside the school buses and

         17  there have been just so many problems with regard to

         18  the pollution that these school buses are spewing,

         19  blackening the lungs of our kids.

         20                 Every day I drop my four year- old at

         21  school and every day he has to wait for five minutes

         22  on a sidewalk breathing the fumes coming out of

         23  these school buses before the school opens its

         24  doors.  It's clearly time that we move quickly, and

         25  through this legislation, I hope that the Department
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          2  of Education will fully comply with this legislation

          3  and move our school buses to a point where they can

          4  start coming into the 21st century. Thank you Madam

          5  Chairperson.

          6                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Any other

          7  comments? I'd like the Clerk to call the roll.

          8  Please respond twice, once for the negative

          9  declaration and a second time for the bill, to adopt

         10  them, vote, yes, yes.

         11                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Moskowitz.

         12                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Yes, yes.

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Comrie.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Yes, yes, yes

         15  to the negative declaration, yes to the Intro.

         16                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Foster.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER:  Yes, yes.

         18                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Jackson.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Yes, yes to

         20  all.

         21                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Thank

         22  you.

         23                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Liu.

         24                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  I vote yes on

         25  both items.
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          2                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Yassky.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  Yes on both

          4  the negative declaration and the bill.

          5                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Yes, I'd

          6  like to ask the Clerk to leave the record open, as

          7  my colleagues are shuttling back and forth between

          8  various meetings.

          9                 COUNCIL CLERK:  The vote stands at

         10  six in affirmative, no negative and no abstentions.

         11  The vote remains open, please sign the reports.

         12                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  I'd like

         13  to understand why the New York City Department of

         14  Transportation manages some of these contracts and

         15  DOE others.  Is there some policy reason? Is it

         16  historical accident?  Why this division?  The light

         17  has to be off for the microphone to be on.

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

         19  Sorry.  I turned it off while you were taking the

         20  vote.  I'm sorry.  I don't know the reason why the

         21  pre- k and early intervention programs were placed

         22  at DOT.  It is something that the Administration

         23  inherited and we believe it came to the Department

         24  in 1992.  But, to tell you exactly why, that I don't

         25  know.
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          2                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Have you

          3  ever asked when you -- I don't know how long you've

          4  been --

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  Yes.

          6                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  -- Doing

          7  the job, but someone must have the historical memory

          8  as to whether --

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  I've

         10  had this for about a year.  Yes, we have asked and

         11  apparently in   '92, State legislation was passed to

         12  provide transportation to early intervention

         13  students and pre- k students with special needs.  I

         14  think it resulted out of that.

         15                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  But why

         16  DOT?  Why not give it to DOE?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  The

         18  specific reason was a policy decision that I believe

         19  was made --

         20                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  But, what

         21  was the reason for the policy decision?  Has anyone

         22   --

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

         24  You'd have to ask --

         25                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  -- Burt
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          2  Sacks (phonetic) surely knows the answer, someone

          3  who's been around for a long time who was -- Steve

          4  Allinger, how long has he been there?

          5                 MR. OESTREICHER:  Not that long.

          6                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Not that

          7  long?

          8                 MR. OESTREICHER:  I really don't know

          9  for sure.  I mean, I can only hazard to guess that

         10  at the time, perhaps when this came through, the

         11  Board of Ed. Was not a Mayoral agency as we are sort

         12  of now, under Mayoral control, and perhaps this is

         13  something that the, I don't know what the Board's

         14  feeling was at the time -- this is total speculation

         15  on my part, whether they wanted to take it on or the

         16  Mayor couldn't really force them to, if they wanted

         17  to, so the Mayor had to take it on in one of his own

         18  agencies.  I'm really just taking a guess --

         19                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Okay, let

         20  me ask the question a different way.  Can you think

         21  of any good policy reason why there should be this

         22  arbitrary division, and presumably, you have to have

         23  doubling up of people managing these contracts, et

         24  cetera?  Is there any policy reason you can think of

         25  to keep it separate?

                                                            38

          1  EDUCATION AND TRANSPORTATION

          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  Well

          3   --

          4                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Other

          5  than some territoriality issue?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

          7  Well, I would say prior to the more recent time when

          8  the Board became the Department of Education, they

          9  were different jurisdictions.  But, since it has,

         10  since the Board has become a Mayoral agency, we have

         11  started discussions about this.

         12                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  So, just

         13  to answer my question, can you think of any policy

         14  reasons that it would be a good idea to keep this

         15  separate?

         16                 MR. OESTREICHER:  From a policy

         17  perspective, I can't think of any reasons why.

         18  Like, I said, we're talking about, we're talking,

         19  we're understanding what you're driving at. We've

         20  spoken, DOT and DOE meet fairly regularly and its an

         21  issue we are looking at for the future, to combine

         22  this, as a possibility.

         23                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  And who

         24  would make the decision or who could make the

         25  decision to combine forces?
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          2                 MR. OESTREICHER:  I guess that would

          3  be a Mayoral decision.

          4                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  So, you

          5  don't need State law or anything like that?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  No,

          7  I don't believe so.

          8                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  It's my

          9  understanding that $535 million is spent to

         10  transport approximately 76,000 children at a cost of

         11  about $7,000.00 per child.  Does that strike you as

         12  a good value?

         13                 MR. OESTREICHER:  I think we are,

         14  it's an expensive operation, it's a lot of money,

         15  but we think that you're getting, it's a very

         16  specialized service with significant costs.  But we

         17  think, yes, we're getting, we're providing an

         18  excellent service for children who really need it

         19  and have special needs that require special

         20  attention, require a certain type of bus, a certain

         21  type of staffing level and it's costly and only a

         22  certain amount of kids could ride on a ride on a

         23  bus. Those things drive up costs in the

         24  transportation operation.

         25                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Okay,
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          2  you've given us a list of the ten largest

          3  contractors.  The largest, Amboy Bus, transports

          4  approximately 10,000 children for $60 million, or

          5  about $5,800.00 per student.  That's below the

          6  $7,000.00 per child average I mentioned.  The other

          7  top nine carry 25,000 children for about $214

          8  million, or $8,500.00 a head.  Why such a large

          9  difference?  Shouldn't the bigger company be able to

         10  do it more efficiently and, therefore, be cheaper?

         11                 MR. OESTREICHER:  No, it depends on

         12  the routes, actually.  It depends on the type of

         13  routes that the company is taking.  Those companies

         14  that take the out of City routes, those routes will

         15  be more expensive.  The longer routes will tend to

         16  be more expensive.  And, the routes with special

         17  conditions are --

         18                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  So, Amboy

         19  has shorter routes?

         20                 MR. OESTREICHER:  It may be on

         21  average.  That's what it's, that's what it's

         22  pointing to, that they don't have as many of the out

         23  of City or the longer routes that some of the other

         24  bus companies would have.

         25                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  I guess
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          2  I'm a little surprise that your answers are so

          3  vague.  You, presumably, pour over these numbers and

          4  are constantly trying to get the biggest bang for

          5  the buck for the City of New York.  You don't have a

          6  more definite sense of this discrepancy?  I'm just a

          7  little surprised.  I mean, this is your area, right?

          8                 MR. OESTREICHER:  Right.

          9                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  I mean,

         10  $5,800.00 per kid and $7,000.00 per kid is a non-

         11  trivial difference.

         12                 MR. OESTREICHER:  And, that's,

         13  that's, it's based on the bids and they bid on the

         14  item, on the type of bus, the bus route and the type

         15  of bus involved and those prices tend to go with the

         16  routes.  So, there are more expensive routes and

         17  there are routes that would be less expensive, and

         18  that's just the reflection of, you could see with

         19  the bids and you could --

         20                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  So, how

         21  does Amboy get, sort of, the shorter routes?  How do

         22  they manage that?

         23                 MR. OESTREICHER:  They bid on it.

         24  They, this was under the original bid --

         25                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  I guess I
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          2  just don't understand why it would be that they

          3  would get the shorter routes.

          4                 MR. OESTREICHER:  They bid the lower

          5  price.  The routes are offered up.  You have an

          6  item, which would be a type of bus --

          7                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  So,

          8  presumably --

          9                 MR. OESTREICHER:  -- Within a type of

         10   --

         11                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  -- If

         12  they were, if they were bidding on the longer

         13  routes, they would provide a more expensive offer,

         14  right?

         15                 MR. OESTREICHER:  Well, they might

         16  not bid on the longer routes.

         17                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  But, why

         18  are they bidding on the shorter routes?  Is there

         19  any reason?

         20                 MR. OESTREICHER:  This is a decision

         21  they make. It's a business decision, the type of

         22  routes they want.

         23                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  I know,

         24  I'm trying to understand what the business decision

         25  is.  I understand that.
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          2                 MR. OESTREICHER:  Well, it's --

          3                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  It's more

          4  profitable, presumably.

          5                 MR. OESTREICHER:  For them, it might

          6  be.  I mean, you have the longer routes, you have

          7  other expenses.  You have, you might have overtime

          8  when you have a route that goes up to Westchester

          9  and then has to pick up the kid at the end of the

         10  day and bring them back.  There might be additional

         11  costs, there's additional gas costs involved with

         12  that, that drives up the price.

         13                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Okay.  I

         14  guess I'm not overwhelmed by the command here of

         15  this price differential.  I mean, you, presumably,

         16  look at these price differentials to try and

         17  understand what is going on here and whether there's

         18  a good reason for it or not.

         19                 MR. OESTREICHER:  Right.  We look at

         20  the prices Council Member, by the item, right? And

         21  they, this is what they bid.  I'm not as concerned

         22  with their business decisions as what we're getting

         23  the price we want on the items that we offer.  So,

         24  if we're offering items within borough and without

         25  borough, we will see a difference in those prices --
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          2                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Right --

          3                 MR. OESTREICHER:  -- A decision --

          4                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  -- And

          5  I'm just trying to understand why there's a

          6  $1,200.00 difference per child. Because, my concern

          7  is that the tax payor is getting the biggest bang

          8  for the buck and that we have the highest quality

          9  service. So, I would think that you would have a

         10  kind of detailed explanation of the differential and

         11  you're sort of saying, well, maybe it's, perhaps

         12  it's the length of the route.  It sounds very --

         13                 MR. OESTREICHER:  It's not perhaps.

         14                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  --

         15  Tentative to me.

         16                 MR. OESTREICHER:  It's not perhaps.

         17  If you look at the different items we have, you'll

         18  find that the shorter routes will generally be

         19  cheaper than the routes that are longer and the

         20  company can choose to bid on whichever routes it's

         21  interested in taking on.

         22                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Okay, let

         23  me move on in the interest of time and then I'm

         24  going to turn it over to my colleagues.  You

         25  reported about 5,000 to 6,000 complaints, lateness
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          2  complaints each year.  How certain are you that

          3  these complaints are the sum total of complaints?

          4  Because, you also had in your testimony that 132,000

          5  people made calls to the hotline.  None of those

          6  were for lateness complaints?

          7                 MR. OESTREICHER:  Some of those were,

          8  yes.

          9                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Can you

         10  break those 132,000 down for us, what people were

         11  calling about?

         12                 MR. OESTREICHER:  We could.  I don't

         13  have that information right now.  But, when I gave

         14  you, you asked specifically about the lateness, we

         15  gave you the complaints we had for lateness in that

         16  month.

         17                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Okay.

         18  Can you give me just --

         19                 MR. OESTREICHER:  When a complaint

         20  comes in it's tracked and it's always followed- up

         21  upon, and it could lead to a violation, violation,

         22  the company --

         23                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  I mean,

         24  it's always followed- up upon, that flies in the

         25  face, I mean you don't even follow- up on letters
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          2  that Council Members send you, so I find it a little

          3  hard to believe that you follow- up on every

          4  complaint. We waited two months to get a response.

          5  I find it disingenuous, at best, to say that every

          6  complaint is followed- up on.  I've worked on the

          7  DOE, you have to work awfully hard to get anything

          8  followed- up.  I send you guys letters all the time

          9  that say, this is my fourth and fifth time reaching

         10  out to you, could you please respond to x.  So, you

         11  know, let's --

         12                 MR. OESTREICHER:  Well --

         13                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  -- Be

         14  realistic here.

         15                 MR. OESTREICHER:  I am being

         16  realistic.  We do follow- up.  We track every

         17  complaint and every complaint is followed- up by us.

         18    That's what we do on the hotline.

         19                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Well, if

         20  that's the case, then I need to see documentation of

         21  that, because you have provided me with absolutely

         22  no evidence that you have quality control here.  So,

         23  you can't make that claim without providing the

         24  evidence.  So, what I would like to see is a

         25  breakdown of the 132,000 calls, what are the
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          2  categories, the date that the call was made and the

          3  date it was followed up on.

          4                 By the way, you often follow- up by

          5  saying it's not a problem.  I get those kind of

          6  follow- ups all the time, thank you Council Member

          7  Moskowitz, actually, you're completely wrong, there

          8  is no such problem that you have referred to.  So, I

          9  need to be able to check.  I mean, presumably, you

         10  want to do this, right?  You don't simply want us to

         11  do it.  You want to make sure that your people are

         12  really being customer service and if you think they

         13  are, you're living on a different planet.  It's just

         14  not the case.  But, in any case --

         15                 MR. OESTREICHER:  Well, I --

         16                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  -- We

         17  don't have to a do a     he said --

         18                 MR. OESTREICHER:  -- I disagree with

         19  you Council Member.

         20                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  -- She

         21  said.  You can provide the evidence and we can go

         22  through it.  But, I'd like it in real time.  So, let

         23  me ask you this, approximately how long would it

         24  take you to get a breakdown of the 132,000

         25  complaints to the hotline, by category and dates
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          2  when those were responded to?

          3                 MR. OESTREICHER:  We could break down

          4  the calls, not every call to the hotline is a

          5  complaint.  There's many, many questions, especially

          6  at the beginning of the year, there will be a slew

          7  of questions about the buses, what's my kid's bus

          8  route and so on and so forth.

          9                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Great, so

         10   --

         11                 MR. OESTREICHER:  Not all complaints.

         12                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  --

         13  Whether it's a complaint or question, you can not

         14  only break it down by category, but show me the

         15  nature and the method and the date of the response?

         16                 MR. OESTREICHER:  We could break down

         17  the, we can break down our complaints by category,

         18  that's --

         19                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  And can

         20  you tell --

         21                 MR. OESTREICHER:  -- What we'll do --

         22                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  -- Can

         23  you show me --

         24                 MR. OESTREICHER:  -- We will break

         25  down the complaints by category.
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          2                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  But, I

          3  want something else, because you've made a very

          4  interesting claim, you have made the claim that all

          5  complaints are followed- up on.  So, I want to be

          6  able to see that.  Can you get me the data that

          7  would allow me to see that you are following --

          8                 MR. OESTREICHER:  You'll see how the

          9  complaints will lead to a violation and how we dealt

         10  with the violation.

         11                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  But not

         12  all complaints do lead to a violation --

         13                 MR. OESTREICHER:  Right

         14                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  -- Based

         15  on your own testimony.

         16                 MR. OESTREICHER:  Right.  If the

         17  complaint is found to be unfounded, or there is a

         18  reason for it that's not a violation on behalf of

         19  the bus company, it's still followed- up upon.  It

         20  doesn't necessarily lead to a violation.

         21                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  So, I can

         22  see, you'll be able to show me that the parent was

         23  called back or the parent was e- mailed back or

         24  there was a phone conversation between someone in

         25  your office or someone in the depot and the parent?
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          2                 MR. OESTREICHER:  I could show that,

          3  what happened to that complaint.  I don't know if I

          4  could show you the whole back and forth between the

          5  parent and the --

          6                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Why not?

          7                 MR. OESTREICHER:  -- And the customer

          8  service representative.  I don't know if that's the

          9  type of detailed records we keep.  We have --

         10                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  That's

         11  the kind of --

         12                 MR. OESTREICHER:  -- The complaint.

         13                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  --

         14  Management I do in my office.

         15                 MR. OESTREICHER:  Well --

         16                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  I track

         17  all of my interactions with my constituents.

         18                 MR. OESTREICHER:  We track --

         19                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Isn't

         20  that what you guys do?

         21                 MR. OESTREICHER:  Right.

         22                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  On the

         23  Council, don't we all track the interactions between

         24  our constituents, so that we know that not only did

         25  we complain to the agency, but the constituent
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          2  received a copy of the letter and knows that their

          3  issue is being followed- up on?  So, I think that

          4  would be very, very helpful to see.

          5                 That leads me to my final set of

          6  questions.  I want to understand how a parent can

          7  find out the safety record of a bus company or a

          8  particular bus or a particular driver.  Is there any

          9  way for a parent, and this is a question to both DOT

         10  and DOE, I want to, you know, I'm the mother of

         11  three children under the age of six.  Before I put

         12  my kid on a bus, I want to make sure that the bus

         13  isn't going to blow up, that the bus isn't going to

         14  be late, that the driver doesn't have a criminal

         15  record, et cetera, et cetera.  How, as a consumer,

         16  can I determine that before I put my precious bundle

         17  on the bus or the ambulet?

         18                 MR. OESTREICHER:  Well, in terms, we

         19  don't, you will not be able to find necessarily a

         20  particular bus number's record.  Every bus, as I

         21  said, is inspected by the New York State Department

         22  of Transportation.  So, we can attest to the fact

         23  that the buses have been inspected and passed

         24  mechanical inspection. Every driver and escort has

         25  been certified by the State --
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          2                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  But, that

          3  wasn't the case --

          4                 MR. OESTREICHER:  -- And passed a

          5  background --

          6                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  --

          7  According to Dick Condin on the ambulet.  You were

          8  hiring drivers who had criminal records, correct?

          9                 MR. OESTREICHER:  We were not hiring

         10  anybody who had criminal records.  See, that report

         11  founded on the ambulet's service is not managed by

         12  the yellow school bus companies.  They were drivers

         13  that the companies put on that had not been

         14  certified --

         15                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Okay,

         16  let's put it this way --

         17                 MR. OESTREICHER:  -- And did not pass

         18  inspection-

         19                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  --

         20  Someone in City government, who had contracted with

         21  the ambulet service was putting bus drivers who had

         22  criminal records, is that not correct, according to

         23  the Dick Condin investigation?

         24                 MR. OESTREICHER:  Right, on the

         25  ambulet service, that's right.  So, there was, there
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          2  was a bit of a gap on that service, which the report

          3  pointed out that we've since resolved, and that

          4  dealt with about 44 kids out of about the 60,000

          5  kids that we transport, and about a very small

          6  number of escorts, compared to the 4,000 escorts --

          7                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Okay, so

          8   --

          9                 MR. OESTREICHER:  -- That we

         10  currently have

         11                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  -- So

         12  you're saying --

         13                 MR. OESTREICHER:  -- In the system.

         14                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  -- You

         15  solved that problem and what we're trying to figure

         16  out is, you know, have you solved other problems

         17  that are there.  I have a very simple question.  Is

         18  there a way for a parent to review the safety record

         19  of a particular bus company?  If I'm a parent and I

         20  want to see Rimar and I want to see what the safety

         21  violations are, can I do that now as a parent?  It's

         22  a yes or no question.

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  I

         24  don't believe you can.

         25                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  The
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          2  answer's no, okay. Can a parent find out how often a

          3  particular bus company is late?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  Do

          5  you want to speak, Marty, first?  For the records

          6  that we have, yes, all they have to do is call us

          7  and ask.

          8                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Okay, but

          9  is there any way I can, is there any, I can't go

         10  down your website and just see which companies have

         11  been late --

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  No.

         13                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  -- Last

         14  year?  Okay, and if I were to call you as an

         15  ordinary parent, I could get that information?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  Yes,

         17  to the extent that we have it.

         18                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  So, if I

         19  got on my cell phone right now and I called the

         20  Department of Transportation, I would be connected

         21  to someone who would tell me how many times a given

         22  company had been late?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  Yes.

         24

         25                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Should I
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          2  try?  Okay.  I will in a second.  I will try.  I'm

          3  profoundly skeptical that I would be able to do

          4  that, but I'm glad that you have such confidence.

          5  I'll try it in a second, once I turn the microphone

          6  over to my colleague.  How about the --

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

          8  What, just, so you know, what they will do is they

          9  will take your request --

         10                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  I'm

         11  sorry, say again.

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  They

         13  will take your request, pull the information and get

         14  back to you with an answer.  They won't be able,

         15  they won't be able to look it up immediately.

         16                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Why not?

         17  Can you go to your office and find out what the

         18  lateness record of a particular bus company is?

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  Yes,

         20  but it's not automated in that fashion that we could

         21  just pull it up.

         22                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  So, why

         23  would you --

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  If

         25  that's what you're, if that's what you're asking.
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          2                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  -- Do it

          3  for yourself, but not for the customers?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  It

          5  would be the same request, either way.

          6                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  So, what

          7   --

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  If I

          9  ask or you ask, someone would pull that company's

         10  record and go through it and get back to me with an

         11  answer.  They wouldn't be --

         12                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Right --

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  --

         14  Able to tell me immediately either.

         15                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Why not?

         16  Wouldn't you want to know that on a daily basis,

         17  managing --

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  Yes

         19  we do and that's --

         20                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  -- Your

         21  school system, you'd want to sort of say every

         22  morning, okay, tell me all the buses that were late

         23  this morning?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  And

         25  the answer to that question is yes, and that's
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          2  something we're working on putting into place.

          3                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  When you

          4  say you're working on, so it's not done yet?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  If

          6  it were done, I would, the answer to the question

          7  would be yes.  The answer to the question --

          8                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  I thought

          9  the answer was yes?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

         11  Well, which question?  The question of can I give

         12  you an answer immediately or do, or I have to get

         13  back to you?

         14                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  I thought

         15  you said that if I called the Department of

         16  Transportation, they would have to get back to me --

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

         18  That's right.

         19                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  -- And

         20  then asked you, well if you wanted to know that

         21  information, you said they'd have to get back to you

         22  too, there's no --

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

         24  That's right.

         25                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  --
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          2  Distinction between the head of school busing and an

          3  ordinary citizen.

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

          5  That's right.

          6                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  And I'm

          7  saying that I find that profoundly disturbing that

          8  even you can't get the information immediately, and

          9  then you said, we're working on it. So, I guess what

         10  I want to understand is what is working on mean?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

         12  We're putting together an automated system to keep

         13  track of the records, those types of records.

         14                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  So, it's

         15  not automated in what sense?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  I --

         17                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Is it not

         18  digitized? You're saying you can't look in the

         19  computer, you have to look at pieces of paper, is

         20  that what you're saying?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  No,

         22  the records, we're in the process of developing an,

         23  a computer based system to do this.

         24                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  So, now

         25  you're on pieces of paper?
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  To

          3  some extent, and in some extent it's been automated,

          4  so to --

          5                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  What do

          6  you mean to some extent, it seems a little odd, we

          7  spent all this money to automate it, but then we

          8  didn't automate the whole thing?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  No.

         10                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Okay.

         11  Explain, we're all ears, we're trying to understand.

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  Just

         13  like any other office, individuals who have some

         14  skills have created their own database or their own

         15  spreadsheet and passed that on, and in some cases,

         16  it hasn't been.

         17                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  So, just

         18  so I understand, you --

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  So,

         20  we're trying to develop --

         21                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  -- Can't

         22  right now, let's deal with you rather than the

         23  ordinary citizen --

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

         25  Okay.

                                                            60

          1  EDUCATION AND TRANSPORTATION

          2                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  -- For

          3  the moment, when you go into your office at 8:00

          4  a.m., can you say to your staff, I'd like to see by,

          5  let's say, 10:00, all the buses that were late this

          6  morning?

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  No,

          8  I can't do that.

          9                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  What can

         10  you, what information can you get, vis- a- vis

         11  lateness?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

         13  Probably records for a prior 12 month period.

         14                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Records

         15  for what?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  We

         17  could give you a record of how many calls we got,

         18  but it doesn't break it down yet.  That's, those are

         19  the issues that we're working on.

         20                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Okay, so

         21  you basically have no idea on any given day whether

         22  particular buses were late?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

         24  That's true, yes.

         25                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  That's
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          2  true.  Okay. And, you're automating it, so you will

          3  in the future, and is this a project that you would

          4  say is two weeks away, six months away-

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  No,

          6  it's more like --

          7                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  -- Three

          8  years --

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  --

         10  It's more like six months away.

         11                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Six

         12  months away.  So, six months from now, you will be

         13  able to somehow go online and figure out, on any

         14  given day, which buses are late, have been late?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  Yes.

         16                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Okay.

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

         18  Well, which, yes, yes, we should be able to do it by

         19  bus.

         20                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Okay.

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  I'm

         22  just trying to remember the design of the system.

         23                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  And do

         24  you envision in this automated system making that

         25  information available to parents?  Do you
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          2  understand?  I mean, this is a Mayor and a

          3  Chancellor and presumably, a Commissioner, who

          4  understand choice in competition and all of these

          5  principals of the free market that parents want to

          6  be able to know before they put their precious

          7  bundle on the bus whether the driver has taken all

          8  the necessary certification, whether the driver has

          9  any violations, whether the bus has a history of

         10  cleanliness or lack thereof, whether the bus has a

         11  history of a working radio, and so forth. Will your

         12  automation allow a parent to see that information or

         13  only you?

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  At

         15  this point, it's only internally.

         16                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Okay.

         17  So, the customer hasn't really been thought of in

         18  this process.  It's an internal management tool for

         19  you, but it's sounds like you don't really want to

         20  let the parents in on this, because they might

         21  object to putting their precious bundle on the

         22  particular buses that have a history of lateness,

         23  wouldn't they?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  They

         25  might.
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          2                 CO- CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Okay.

          3  I'm going to turn the microphone over to Chairman

          4  Liu.  As I mentioned, this is what I'm like when I'm

          5  not feeling well.  You can imagine if I'm feeling

          6  well, my questions might be even tougher.

          7                 But, I'm profoundly disappointed that

          8  the customer is at the very bottom of your list in

          9  terms of automation system. I think it would go a

         10  tremendously long way if you basically issued school

         11  report cards on the buses, so everybody could see

         12  exactly how often they were found dirty, exactly how

         13  often they were found late, how well the parents

         14  evaluated, I would even have a customer feedback

         15  loop, so the customers could say, you know, the

         16  matron is inadequate and doesn't understand the

         17  behavioral issues of my child.  Council Member Liu,

         18  I'm going to leave you, I'm going to leave the

         19  Committee in very good hands.

         20                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you

         21  Council Member Moskowitz.  We hope that you get

         22  better quickly, for the benefit of the Department of

         23  Education.  We're joined by Council Member Helen

         24  Sears from Queens.  I have a few questions and I

         25  know some of our colleagues here have questions as
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          2  well.

          3                 I guess I'll first direct my

          4  questions to both of you gentlemen.  As, according

          5  to the testimony that you've given and the written

          6  responses we received today, the Department of

          7  Transportation is in charge of pre- kindergarten

          8  kids --

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

         10  Correct, and early intervention.

         11                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  And?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

         13  Early intervention.

         14                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay.  So,

         15  early intervention, up to what age?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  It's

         17  from one to three, basically.

         18                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So, basically,

         19  kids who are younger than kindergarten age?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  Yes.

         21                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  And is that

         22  just special education --

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  Yes.

         24                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  -- Or is that

         25  all?
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  It's

          3  just special ed.

          4                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Just special

          5  ed.  And, the Department of Education is responsible

          6  for transporting all kids, special ed. Or otherwise,

          7  above the age, well, kindergarten and above?

          8                 MR. OESTREICHER:  That's correct.

          9                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  And, below the

         10  age of kindergarten, do you provide, well, what

         11  about non- special education?

         12                 MR. OESTREICHER:  I don't believe

         13  pre- k kids, general education kids, do get busing.

         14                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay.  So, now,

         15  Mr. Altschuler, your title is the Deputy

         16  Commissioner of Procurement and Technical Services

         17  and Passenger Transport at the Department of

         18  Transportation.  So, in addition to providing school

         19  buses for pre- kindergarten age and early

         20  intervention special education students, what else

         21  falls under your purview?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  The

         23  agency's contracting authority, management

         24  information systems --

         25                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Contracting
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          2  with, for what services?

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

          4  Everything the agency buys, from bridge

          5  reconstruction, construction, to services.

          6                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  And then what

          7  was the other item you were going to.

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

          9  Management information systems, telecommunications.

         10                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Now, both of

         11  you testified that you're not really sure why the

         12  DOT became responsible for transporting these very

         13  young special education students.  There are

         14  theories about, perhaps, in the early  '90's the

         15  Department of Education was the board back then, it

         16  was a separate entity, so perhaps it was more

         17  expedient to put it under DOT.  We don't know what

         18  the reasons are, but I haven't heard any

         19  satisfactory response as to why it continues to be

         20  this way.  Is there any, is this going to be the

         21  system going forward for the foreseeable future, or

         22  is there an effort to consolidate these operations,

         23  these school bus operations?

         24                 MR. OESTREICHER:  We've had some

         25  preliminary discussions and it's something we very,
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          2  we are going to consider. It's not something that

          3  you can do in a snapshot.  I mean, as they've

          4  developed over the years, they've developed two very

          5  different ways of doing business.  It doesn't mean

          6  they cannot be put under the same leadership at some

          7  time.  We agree that that's an area that we're

          8  looking at, but it's not something you can do very

          9  quickly.

         10                 If you look at the operations and the

         11  rules governing the contracts, there are some

         12  significant differences and they have to be

         13  researched and looked at.  But, it's certainly

         14  something that, as you say, it's something that

         15  makes sense and it's something we're looking at.

         16  Now that we are under Mayor, both are Mayoral

         17  agencies, it's something that we are looking at.

         18                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Are you looking

         19  at it urgently or is it just one of the things that

         20  you have an occasional discussion about?  Is there a

         21  timeframe for making a decision as to whether the

         22  special education busing should be put under one

         23  entity?

         24                 MR. OESTREICHER:  There's been no

         25  specific time frame set yet.
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          2                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  The contracting

          3  differences that you talked about, have they led to

          4  differences in the way service is provided for the

          5  kids?

          6                 MR. OESTREICHER:  What do you mean

          7  differences in the level of service?

          8                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Well, you just

          9  said that there are some, presumably --

         10                 MR. OESTREICHER:  Right.

         11                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  -- Complex

         12  issues surrounding the differences in the way the

         13  contracts are put out between the Department of

         14  Education and, by the Department of Education, and

         15  contracts put out by the Department of

         16  Transportation.  But, do those differences in

         17  contracts result in any discernible difference in

         18  the way the busing is provided to the special

         19  education kids?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  I

         21  don't think so.

         22                 MR. OESTREICHER:  No, in terms of the

         23  quality, no.

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  I

         25  don't think so. No, the primary purpose of both
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          2  contracts is to get the kids to school.  It's to --

          3                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So, you have

          4  the --

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  --

          6  Provide the service.  From a service standpoint,

          7  from purely a service standpoint, I think the

          8  contractual requirements are pretty much the same.

          9                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Well, what

         10  other requirements are there, apart from a service

         11  requirement, a service standpoint?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

         13  Contracts have many requirements.  They go beyond --

         14                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Is there a big

         15  difference, is there a difference because the kids

         16  are of different ages?  Is that the reason why

         17  there's a difference in the way contracts are let

         18  out by your respective agencies?

         19                 MR. OESTREICHER:  There are some

         20  differences in the way, in the requirements of the

         21  buses for smaller kids and for older kids.  That's

         22  not the main difference.  The Administration, the

         23  terms of the contracts, the way they're paid, the

         24  way they're offered out, there have been some

         25  differences that have grown over the years.  So,
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          2  there is significant differences in the way the

          3  contracts are done.  The bottom line is to get the

          4  kids to school on time, comfortably and safely,

          5  that's in both, that's in both our areas.  The goals

          6  and the quality of the service is the same.

          7                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Well, I agree

          8  with you on that point, which is why I'm struggling

          9  to understand why there would be big differences.

         10  Could you give us an example of a difference in --

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

         12  Payments, payment terms are very different.

         13                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  The payment

         14  terms.

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  Yes.

         16                 MR. OESTREICHER:  Right.

         17                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So, is there,

         18  can you give us an example?

         19                 MR. OESTREICHER:  The DOE buses, we

         20  pay a daily rate for the bus, doesn't matter if they

         21  are ten kids on the bus or 15 kids on the bus.  It's

         22  whatever was bid by that contractor for that

         23  particular item.  A ramp wagon within Manhattan bids

         24  $500.00 a day, whether there's six kids on the bus

         25  or seven kids on the bus, that's what we're going to
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          2  pay that contractor for that item.  In DOT, it's

          3  different.

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  Our

          5  contracts are bid by the child.  We pay by the

          6  child.

          7                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Now, Marty,

          8  there's a, I guess a new contract that's been put

          9  out for the school buses, the school bus companies

         10   '05 to  '09?

         11                 MR. OESTREICHER:  No,  '06 to '010.

         12                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  '06 to  '010.

         13                 MR. OESTREICHER:  Not 010,  '06 to

         14   '10.

         15                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  You got me on

         16  that one too.

         17                 MR. OESTREICHER:  No, I did it, I

         18  made the mistake.

         19                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  '06 to 2010.

         20                 MR. OESTREICHER:  Uh- huh.

         21                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  And when are

         22  these contracts going to be finalized?

         23                 MR. OESTREICHER:  We're hoping to

         24  actually extend the current contracts before the end

         25  of this fiscal year, before the end of the school
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          2  year.  So, they will be in place by July 1st.

          3                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  And, is there,

          4  so, before July 1st, that's about two and a half

          5  months away.

          6                 MR. OESTREICHER:  Uh- huh.

          7                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Are you talking

          8  with the DOT about when their contracts are up?

          9                 MR. OESTREICHER:  Their contracts,

         10  they have a variety of, Howard could talk to you

         11  more about their contracts, but I don't think they

         12  all go up at one time.

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  They

         14  don't.  Our contracts run, generally, they're three

         15  year contracts, and we had, we service approximately

         16  300 school programs, of which we bid out, generally

         17  between 30 to 60 of those programs, twice a year.

         18  So, all of our contracts don't start on the same day

         19  and they don't end on the same day.

         20                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Now, Marty, you

         21  just talked about how you were having discussions,

         22  or there's been thought about putting these

         23  operations under one roof, under a smaller roof, not

         24  within the City, but within one department, and

         25  right now you're trying to get the contracts, five
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          2  year contracts extended within the next two and a

          3  half months.  Has there been any thought, have you

          4  had any discussions with the DOT about the extension

          5  of these contracts, and how that might make it more

          6  difficult, impossible, nearly, for the next five

          7  years, to put these operations under one roof if you

          8  don't talk about that now?

          9                 MR. OESTREICHER:  First of all, we

         10  have to get the contracts extended by July 1st.  We

         11  don't have a lot of time, to put the two operations

         12  together is something that takes, it's not something

         13  that will take a matter of months, it will take a

         14  while longer than that.  Having said that, though,

         15  because we go into the extension for the next five

         16  years does not, by any means, make it impossible to

         17  absorb these, that bus operation in our agency if

         18  that's the way it's going to go.  Contracts can

         19  always be amended, there have frequent amendments to

         20  the contracts to take this type of stuff on.  But,

         21  it's not something that you want to rush through to

         22  meet the deadline for the new contract date.  It's

         23  something that requires a lot of thought because the

         24  operations are different.

         25                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  I'm not
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          2  suggesting that you rush into it, I'm just trying to

          3  understand what the process is-

          4                 MR. OESTREICHER:  But I'm just saying

          5  it's, not to contradict you, you're saying, you're

          6  sort of implying that I'm locking myself, we're

          7  locking ourselves in here and that would block out

          8  any hope for doing it under one roof for the next

          9  five years, and I don't believe that's the case.

         10                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So, the five

         11  year contracts that you're hoping to extend very

         12  soon would have a provision where you could back out

         13  of those contracts?

         14                 MR. OESTREICHER:  Sure.  We always

         15  amend, we could always amend the contracts if we

         16  reach an agreement for the contractors to do it, or

         17  it depends how it's going to go.  We could issue new

         18  contracts for just that and still have it under our

         19  control with different contractors, or the

         20  contractors can bid separately for the pre- k, if

         21  it's decided that DOE is going to manage that.  So,

         22  I don't see that one contradicts the other.

         23                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay, and the

         24  DOE manages the bulk of the contracts, right? About

         25  470, the DOT  --
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          2                 MR. OESTREICHER:  Well, we have a

          3  larger population, we take about 60,000 kids.  We

          4  have about 50, 51 companies servicing special ed.,

          5  so it's a bigger operation.

          6                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So, does it

          7  make sense then that the DOT operations for those

          8  pre- kindergarten kids get rolled into the

          9  Department of Education's busing program, Mr.

         10  Altschuler?  Or do you guys want to hold on to that?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  No,

         12  on the surface it certainly appears that way, but I

         13  think --

         14                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  On the surface

         15  what appears that way?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  On

         17  the surface it appears that putting them under one

         18  agency is a good idea.  But, I think that it's

         19  something to do that.  You have to take a very long

         20  and hard look at what that means and how you would

         21  effect that type of transfer.

         22                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Howard, does

         23  your agency want to put it under the Department of

         24  Education, the responsibility for transporting those

         25  little kids?  Would you prefer that to fall under
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          2  the Department of Education?

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

          4  That's not my call to say, sir.

          5                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Well, you're

          6  the head of the operations there, and, you know, it

          7  doesn't make any sense for two separate City

          8  agencies to be doing the same thing, using different

          9  contracting rules and different criteria, where, in

         10  fact, both of you testified that you have the same

         11  goal, of getting these kids safely to and from

         12  school.

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

         14  That's, that's --

         15                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So, do you want

         16  to hold on to the operation, or do you, would you

         17  rather give it over to the Department of Education?

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

         19  That's a policy decision, that is not mine to make.

         20                 MR. OESTREICHER:  I think that'll

         21  come out of the meeting we have.  If that's the

         22  conclusion that's reached, then that's, by both the

         23  Commissioner of DOT, the Chancellor and the Deputy

         24  Mayors, then that's the way it's going to go.  But,

         25  I think it's a little unfair to ask him at this
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          2  point if he's willing to hold onto it or keep it.

          3  That's, that will be part of our discussions.

          4                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  I'm not asking

          5  if you're willing, I'm just asking is this something

          6  that the Department of Transportation would like to

          7  do, to cede that responsibility to the Department of

          8  Education?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  And

         10   --

         11                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  There's no,

         12  there's no judgment there on my part --

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  It's

         14   --

         15                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  -- Or anybody's

         16  part here.

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  -- A

         18  policy decision and I'm not in a position to make

         19  that decision, and I'm not going to opine on it

         20  either.

         21                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay.  In the

         22  case of the bus that burst into flames.

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  Yes.

         24                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Was that under

         25  the Department of Education's operations or was it
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          2  under DOT operation?

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  No,

          4  it was pre- k, both of them were pre- k buses.  So,

          5  they were ours.

          6                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Both of them

          7  were pre- k buses.

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  Two

          9  different companies, same model bus, both under

         10  contract to DOT.

         11                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  When you list

         12  the top ten contracts, is that a combination of both

         13  the pre- k and the kindergarten and above

         14  operations?

         15                 MR. OESTREICHER:  In the response,

         16  yes it is. Most of them, because of the size of our

         17  operation, are DOE companies.  I think there was one

         18  out of the, one out of the ten that's a contractor

         19  with DOT.

         20                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Oh, well,

         21  that's what I mean. So, if a company has a contract

         22  with the DOT, then it generally just has it with the

         23  DOT and not with the DOE also?

         24                 MR. OESTREICHER:  Yes, that's

         25  correct.
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          2                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So, no company

          3  has contracts with the, with both departments?

          4                 MR. OESTREICHER:  No.

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  I

          6  don't think so.

          7                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So, is, when

          8  you competitively bid out those contracts, I mean,

          9  does it just coincidentally happen like that?  For

         10  example, a company like Rimar has, obviously has a

         11  contract with the DOT.

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

         13  Right.

         14                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Does that

         15  preclude them from bidding on DOE contracts?

         16                 MR. OESTREICHER:  No.

         17                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  But, so it's

         18  just coincidence that they seem to be mutually

         19  exclusive, the companies that are contracted by the

         20  Department of Education generally do not have a

         21  contract with the DOT and vice versa?

         22                 MR. OESTREICHER:  The companies that

         23  work with the Department of Education have worked

         24  with us for quite a while and they, they, as far as

         25  I know, do not have as, going under the names of
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          2  those companies, have a contract with DOT.

          3                 There may be cases, I don't know for

          4  sure, where there may be some common ownership where

          5  there is, the owner of a company in DOE has bid for

          6  a DOT contract under a different name and formed a

          7  different company, but there may be some common

          8  management.  But, the companies themselves, the

          9  corporations that run the DOE contracts, as far as I

         10  know, there is no overlap with the corporations that

         11  run the DOT contracts.

         12                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  That seems a

         13  little weird. So, maybe its a function of, as you

         14  said, these companies having contracts with

         15  Education and perhaps with Transportation for a long

         16  period of time.  In other words, there's very little

         17  turnover of the companies that provide this bus

         18  service?

         19                 MR. OESTREICHER:  In the Department

         20  of Education, that's the case.

         21                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So, the, nine

         22  out of the ten top companies that have the largest

         23  contracts, they've been with the Department of

         24  Education for a very long time?

         25                 MR. OESTREICHER:  Many years,
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          2  correct.

          3                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So, when you

          4  competitively bid out these bus contracts, is there

          5  competition or is it pretty much the same ones come

          6  in and there aren't any new companies bidding?

          7                 MR. OESTREICHER:  Well, we've

          8  extended the contracts the last couple of rounds.

          9  There was competitive bidding that was done.  These

         10  were the companies that bid and there was, there was

         11  some further bids in the  '90's.  Generally, the

         12  last couple of times, we've extended the contracts

         13  of our current contractors.

         14                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So, this

         15  current contract you have, is that also a five year

         16  contract?

         17                 MR. OESTREICHER:  It was a five year

         18  extension, we're under a five year extension and

         19  we're going --

         20                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So, this was --

         21                 MR. OESTREICHER:  -- To extend

         22  another five years --

         23                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  -- Extended in

         24  the year 2000?

         25                 MR. OESTREICHER:  Yes.
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          2                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  And what about

          3  that five year contract that expired in 2000, was

          4  that also an extender?

          5                 MR. OESTREICHER:  That was extended

          6  as well.

          7                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So, for at

          8  least, at least --

          9                 MR. OESTREICHER:  Some of these bids

         10  go back into the early  '80's, from the original

         11  bid.  There were some newer bids, I believe, late

         12   '80's, early  '90's.  But, the last, throughout the

         13  last ten, 15 years, they've been extended in five

         14  year increments.

         15                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So, for pretty

         16  much for at least 20 years, there have not been

         17  competitive biddings put out on these bus companies?

         18                 MR. OESTREICHER:  There have been not

         19  any new bids, that's correct.  We've extended the

         20  current contracts.

         21                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Is there

         22  because, what's the reason for just simply extending

         23  these contracts?

         24                 MR. OESTREICHER:  Well, we think

         25  there are good reasons for extending them in this
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          2  scenario, because, right now, there is, going out to

          3  bid will, based on the studies that we've done and

          4  our consultants have done for us, and based on

          5  what's happened in neighboring cities, the cost

          6  that, the cost increase are very, very dramatic, and

          7  we believe that if you can extend with our current

          8  contractors, build in some new service levels that I

          9  talked about in my testimony, we could save a

         10  substantial amount of money, get the increase in

         11  service.

         12            We do not believe because of the nature of

         13  the buses, the bus routes that we have, the

         14  contracts we have tend to be larger, that it's not

         15  very easy for new companies to break in. So, you

         16  will not have the benefits of going to a pure bid,

         17  you will, probably not very many companies breaking

         18  in, we've surveyed some of the largest bus companies

         19  in the metropolitan area and the country to gauge

         20  their interest in coming into New York City and

         21  generally the response was negative.

         22                 Certain reasons for that, but there

         23  was no interest in coming in.  So, going out to a

         24  bid, you'd probably wind up with the same bidders,

         25  the same contracts you currently have bidding it,
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          2  and it would come out at a much higher cost than if

          3  we could extend it and we could negotiate some

          4  increases in service.

          5                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  I know this is

          6  an issue that my colleague, Robert Jackson, is

          7  intimately familiar with and I believe that he'll

          8  ask you some questions about this as well. How about

          9  the DOT, Howard, is there a competitive bid put out

         10  on these school bus contracts, or are they pretty

         11  much the --

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  Yes.

         13                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  -- Same

         14  contractors coming out?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  As I

         16  said before, we, we competitively bid contracts for

         17  between 30 to 60 programs, and that number

         18  fluctuates, generally twice a year.

         19                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  And out of the

         20   -- roughly, how many contractors do you have?  How

         21  many companies have contracts?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

         23  Round number? 40.

         24                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  About 40?  So,

         25  in the case of, so Rimar is not, would you say that
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          2  they're a huge presence, or they're a relatively

          3  minor company?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

          5  They're a significant presence.

          6                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So, 40

          7  companies transporting about, what? 16,000 kids, the

          8  youngest kids that we're talking about?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  Yes,

         10  about 17, and about 11,000 on any given day.

         11                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay.

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  They

         13  don't, not all of the pre- k kids go to school every

         14  day, so.

         15                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  And does having

         16  such a large number of companies make it difficult

         17  to oversee the operations of all of these bus

         18  companies?

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  At

         20  times, it does get trying, yes.

         21                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  What

         22  circumstances result in the Department of

         23  Transportation needing to contract out to 40

         24  companies, to transport 11,000 kids on a daily

         25  basis?
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

          3  Prior to the last couple of years, the, each program

          4  was led as a separate bid. So, at one point, there

          5  are 300 programs, there were 300 matching contracts.

          6    The --

          7                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  A program is

          8  presumably school- based?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

         10  School- based, right.  Sometimes, sometimes a

         11  particular school building might have more than one

         12  program in it.  So, that's why we count by program,

         13  as opposed to the school itself.

         14                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So, are you

         15  making progress in whittling down the number of

         16  contractors to a more manageable level?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  Yes,

         18  I think in the testimony, I think we're down to a

         19  148.  It's in the testimony, I'm sorry, I just don't

         20  remember the number.  Yes, 148, first page, last

         21  paragraph.

         22                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  And, in the

         23  case of Rimar, how long has this company had the

         24  contract?

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:
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          2  Well, which contract?  They have several --

          3                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  The current --

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  --

          5  They have several contracts with us.

          6                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  How many

          7  contracts does this company have then?  You're

          8  probably averaging three to four contracts per

          9  company?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

         11  About seven contracts.

         12                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Seven

         13  contracts.  So, they are a --

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

         15  Well, just --

         16                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  -- Significant

         17  presence because --

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  Yes.

         19                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  -- They're

         20  bigger than average.

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

         22  They're bigger than average.

         23                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  And, so each of

         24  these contracts involve different schools?

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:
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          2  Correct.  Now, if you --

          3                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  And one school,

          4  each --

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  Just

          6  to, just to bring you back --

          7                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Yes.

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  --

          9  Remember all of our contracts are done every six

         10  months.  So, there are schools where their contracts

         11  are expiring and going out to bid. So, that's why a

         12  vendor can have more than one contract.

         13                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Alright, so,

         14  but every six months you have new contracts coming

         15  up for --

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

         17  Correct.

         18                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  -- Rebidding --

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

         20  Correct.

         21                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  -- Or renewal

         22  or extension.

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  Yes,

         24  well, no. We rebid.

         25                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  You rebid.
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          2  And, they're generally --

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  The

          4  contracts --

          5                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Every six

          6  months you have a group of contracts coming up, but

          7  they're --

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

          9  Correct.

         10                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  -- Generally

         11  bid for three years?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

         13  They're generally three years.

         14                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay.  So, with

         15  regard to the contract held by Rimar, in the case of

         16  the bus that burst into flames in Staten Island,

         17  was, is that contract up for renewal sometime soon

         18  or is that just beginning?

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  That

         20  specific contract?  I'm, I don't have the answer for

         21  you on that specific contract, but I can get it for

         22  you.

         23                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay.  Well,

         24  how many, how many school buses have burst into

         25  flames this year, in 2005?
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  Two.

          3                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  And both of

          4  them --

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  Our

          6  buses, you're talking about?

          7                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Yes.

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  Or

          9  are talking about State- wide or?

         10                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  I'm talking

         11  about the buses run by the Department of

         12  Transportation, or contracted by.  And, how many

         13  companies were involved in those two?

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  Two.

         15                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  What was the

         16  other company again?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

         18  Seldy (phonetic)

         19                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Now, is a

         20  school bus bursting into flames a very serious

         21  matter?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  Of

         23  course it's a serious matter and, but the issue

         24  really is, is why it happens.

         25                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So, why did it
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          2  happen?

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

          4  Well, that's a very good question, the, we've spoken

          5  to State DOT about it. It's, this really falls into

          6  their purview.  The thing to note is both buses, run

          7  by two separate companies, are the same model bus,

          8  they're both a gasoline- driven bus, as opposed to a

          9  diesel driven bus.

         10                 The, there is some thought that it

         11  could be linked to a defect in that particular model

         12  bus.  But, at this point, from what State DOT has

         13  told us, there is no reason for us to believe that

         14  it's due to lack of maintenance.

         15                 What State DOT has also told us is

         16  that it is not uncommon in this State for there to

         17  be a fire on a school bus.  I want, can, these are,

         18  I've been in the Department three years, this is the

         19  first time that we've had it.  I can't speak for the

         20  Department of Ed., but, we think that it was a

         21  unique --

         22                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU: You think that

         23  it was --

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  --

         25  Set of circumstances.
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          2                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  -- A what?

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

          4  Unique.  I don't think this indicative of the

          5  maintenance of the buses, if that's the point you're

          6  trying to make, no.

          7                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  I'm not trying

          8  to make any point, I'm asking questions so I could

          9  get more information, maybe later on I need to make

         10  a point.  So, the State DOT, according to the

         11  information we have, they're the ones responsible

         12  for inspecting the maintenance --

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  They

         14  inspect the buses twice a year.

         15                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  -- And the good

         16  repair of the buses?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  Yes,

         18  and they certify them as safe to be on the street.

         19                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  And, once they

         20  certify that, they pass it off to you, and then you

         21  just --

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  Well

         23   --

         24                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  -- You just

         25  make sure that they have a valid sticker and that's
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          2  as far as your job --

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  Our

          4  inspectors are not mechanics.

          5                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  I'm not

          6  accusing you of anything, I just want to know what

          7  the process is.

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

          9  Well, they don't pass it off to us.  They do their

         10  job and we do ours.

         11                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay.  Forget

         12  passing off. So, the State DOT certifies the good

         13  repair of one of these buses by --

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

         15  Correct.

         16                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  -- Issuing a

         17  sticker.

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

         19  Correct.

         20                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  And, our DOT

         21  looks to make sure that the school bus has a valid

         22  sticker.

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

         24  Correct.

         25                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Indicating that
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          2  it's in good repair?

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  Yes.

          4                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Now, in the

          5  case of the bus that blew up, the DOT is saying, the

          6  State DOT is telling you that it was probably just a

          7  fluke?  There doesn't seem to be anything that has

          8  to do with the maintenance of the vehicle?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  I

         10  don't know, I'm not sure about the term fluke, but

         11   --

         12                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay.

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  --

         14  They, there's no, there's no indication that the

         15  reason for it was for poor, poor maintenance of the

         16  bus, of either bus.

         17                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So, the State

         18  DOT, could you say that again, what has the State

         19  DOT told you in terms of what they think is --

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

         21  There's no, they haven't told us what they think the

         22  cause of the fire was, just that there was no

         23  indication that it was, that the fire was due to

         24  poor maintenance.

         25                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  But they,
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          2  earlier you said that they, they said there might be

          3  something wrong with that model of vehicle?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

          5  Well, we talked about that and that's something they

          6  are looking into.  Do I have the final answer on

          7  that?  No.

          8                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  In your

          9  opinion, well, I won't say that, do you feel that

         10  this is just something that the State Department of

         11  Transportation needs to follow- up on and whenever

         12  they make their determination is when they'll give

         13  that information to you, and up until that point,

         14  there's no need for our DOT to do anything or to

         15  take any action or to even review contracts?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  I

         17  believe it was an isolated incident.  I'm not sure

         18  what the action you would like us to take would be.

         19  I mean.

         20                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Well, for

         21  starters, if we have two of the same model bus

         22  catching fire in the same month in our City,

         23  presumably, if I were in your position, and I don't

         24  presume to know how to do your job better, but

         25  something that I would do is to look to see if maybe
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          2  school buses in other parts of the country or in

          3  other cities have caught fire, and if those buses

          4  are the same model.  I would take a look at that.  I

          5  wouldn't necessarily wait for the State DOT to come

          6  up with answer for that.  I mean, has your

          7  Department done anything to look at that, or are you

          8  just waiting for some more information from the

          9  State DOT?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  No,

         11  what we, what we've done, there are about 53 of, out

         12  of 887 buses that are that model, and we've asked

         13  those operators to pay close attention to --

         14  generally when there's a fire on a, in a car or a

         15  bus or a vehicle in general, it's usually due to

         16  wires that rub against metal parts in the bus, wear

         17  away a piece of insulation, they spark, and the

         18  installation starts to melt and, you know what else

         19  happens after that.

         20                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Sure.

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  So,

         22  we've asked for those companies, I think there are

         23  two companies, I believe, that have some of those

         24  buses, to go through those buses and make sure that

         25  all the wiring harnesses are secured properly --
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          2                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  And, have you

          3  done this will all 38 companies that have contracts

          4  currently?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  With

          6  the companies that have this model bus.  There are

          7  about 58 of these buses in, out of 887.

          8                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay.  So, you

          9  actually have a list out of the 38 companies that

         10  have contracts with the Department --

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  Do

         12  we know which companies --

         13                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  -- Which ones

         14   --

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:   --

         16  Have those buses?  Yes.

         17                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay.  So you,

         18  any how many companies, roughly?

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  I

         20  believe it's only two.  Okay, one, two, three, four,

         21  five, six, seven, eight, there are nine companies.

         22                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Nine companies.

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  For

         24  a total of 55 buses.

         25                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay.  So, for
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          2  those nine companies, you've sent them a memo?  Is

          3  that --

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

          5  We've called them.  We've called them and asked them

          6  to do this.

          7                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay.  And what

          8  time period do you think that these calls were made?

          9    Were they made in the month of January, February

         10  or March?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

         12  Shortly after the fire.

         13                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So, late

         14  January early February?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  Yes.

         16                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  And this was

         17  after the first fire or the second fire?

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  The

         19  second fire.

         20                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Do you know

         21  when the second fire happened?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  It

         23  was Valentine's Day.

         24                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Alright, so --

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:
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          2  February 14th.

          3                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So, you most

          4  likely made the calls --

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

          6  About two weeks after the first fire.

          7                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  In the end of

          8  February, early March?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  End

         10  of February, closer to the end of February.

         11                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  End of

         12  February.  Can you give us a list of the nine

         13  companies --

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

         15  Sure.

         16                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  -- That have

         17  these buses?

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  Uh-

         19  huh.

         20                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Now, is there,

         21  has there been any follow- up with these companies

         22  to make sure that they've conducted those

         23  inspections that you asked them to do over the

         24  phone?

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  I'm
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          2  sorry -- excuse me one second -- unfortunately, not

          3  as well as I'd like.

          4                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  I can't hear

          5  you.

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  I

          7  said unfortunately not, not, the follow- up is not

          8  as well as I would have liked it to be.

          9                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay.  So, it's

         10  the end of April, you made these calls two months

         11  ago, and let me state for the record that this is a

         12  very serious issue.  If it were up to me, I would

         13  have sent them at least a memo, something in writing

         14  that demonstrates the severity of this.  We're

         15  talking about a school bus that caught fire, two

         16  school buses that caught fire. Fortunately, nothing

         17  happened to those kids.  But, a fire on a school bus

         18  is a very serious, serious problem.

         19                 So, number one, I certainly would

         20  have sent them a memo.  Do you have records of who

         21  made calls to whom in your Department?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  Yes.

         23                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Can you get us

         24  a list of --

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:
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          2  Sure.

          3                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  -- Which

          4  individual called which --

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  Uh-

          6  huh.

          7                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  -- Individual

          8  at the end of the company on what day, or is that,

          9  if that's too much detail, tell us now.  You know,

         10  I'm not saying that you have to have that level of

         11  detail, but you have to at least have some record of

         12  the call.

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  All

         14  of the companies were called.  What I'm being told

         15  is that we may or may not have the name of the

         16  person at the company who was spoken to.           CO

         17  - CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So, then you have no

         18  accountability with your contractor?

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  I'm

         20  not sure what you mean by that.

         21                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  I think you

         22  know exactly what I mean.  Any time you make a call,

         23  if it's not in writing, you would presumably know

         24  who you're talking to on the other end. Or, is it

         25  just simply, is it just okay to leave a message with
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          2  a receptionist?  Presumably, this is serious enough

          3  that you're talking to --

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  I

          5  don't believe that.

          6                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  -- Either the

          7  head of the company or at least someone who is in a

          8  responsible position. So, it's disturbing to me that

          9  there's no memo.  It is additionally disturbing that

         10  the calls that were made don't have any line of

         11  accountability.  Whatever kind of detail you could

         12  provide us with, that would be good.

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

         14  Sure.

         15                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  The companies

         16  that were called, who made the calls from your

         17  Department and who on the other end, if available,

         18  received those calls and took down the message.  Is

         19  that, is --

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

         21  We'll get that to you.

         22                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  -- Is a week

         23  enough time to do that or do you --

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  Yes

         25                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  -- Need two
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          2  weeks?

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  A

          4  week will be fine.  A week will be fine.

          5                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  A week?  Okay,

          6  so maybe by next Friday?  We'll give you a little

          7  more than a week?

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

          9  Sure.

         10                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  You can give us

         11  a letter indicating what calls were made to whom,

         12  when.

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  Uh-

         14  huh.

         15                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  And also if you

         16  could describe what was the substance of those

         17  calls.  In other words, exactly how you phrased it

         18  to these companies what you expected them to do.

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  Yes.

         20                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Now, it's been

         21  two months and you still haven't followed- up, even

         22  though you testified that this is a very serious

         23  problem, school buses catching on fire. So, what

         24  would be your time frame for making the follow- ups,

         25  to at least make sure that these companies did what
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          2  you asked them to do?  Or, are you not going to look

          3  at that until the following contract, until the

          4  contract comes up for the next review?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  When

          6  you say, do what they had to do, you mean check the

          7  buses that, this particular model bus?  Or, provide

          8  service to the kids?

          9                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Well, you asked

         10  them to do something when you called them two months

         11  ago, right?  You just testified --

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  Yes.

         13                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  -- Right after

         14  the second accident, you called, you notified the

         15  companies that there might be a problem.  Then, you

         16  talked about some wires rubbing against metal,

         17  whatever, I don't, it doesn't matter to me what the

         18  technical aspect is, but you asked them to do

         19  something.

         20                 So, presumably, you would follow- up

         21  with them at some point to make sure they actually

         22  did it, in the case of a serious incident, such as

         23  school buses catching on fire.  But, it's been two

         24  months and you haven't done the follow- up.  So, my

         25  question is, when do you expect to do the follow- up
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          2  or do you expect at all to do the follow- up?

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSION ALTSCHULER:  How

          4  about we'll give you the follow- up information on

          5  Friday with the names of the companies and what the

          6  results were?

          7                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Yea, but, are

          8  you saying that you can't even tell me now when

          9  you're going to just call up those companies and

         10  make sure that they did it?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  What

         12  I'm telling you is the information I will give you

         13  on Friday will contain the follow- up information,

         14  they'll be done between now and then.

         15                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay.  That's

         16  fair enough. We look forward to receiving that

         17  information from you and the Department of

         18  Transportation.

         19                 You know, I'll just tell you real

         20  quick, my wife and I were trying to figure out what

         21  kind of school buses to put our son on for the next

         22  year in September.  I think there are a lot of

         23  parents in this room who, when you read about a

         24  school bus catching on fire in the news, it is just,

         25  I don't, I assume that you don't currently have a
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          2  kid in school that relies on school buses, but the

          3  level of concern, I don't think there's anything

          4  that could rise to the level of concern of a parent

          5  with a very young child, who reads about a school

          6  bus catching fire in the newspapers.

          7                 So, my point in saying that is that I

          8  urge you to, I know you've got a lot of

          9  responsibilities, the DOT is very large, your own

         10  responsibilities encompass a great deal more than

         11  just running school buses for one to five year- old

         12  kids.  But, that's a responsibility that I know that

         13  you don't take lightly and I think your actions need

         14  to reflect that view as well.

         15                 And, if you're not, if it's not a

         16  high priority for the DOT, then I urge you to roll

         17  it over to the Department of Education as quickly as

         18  possible.  I think we can have uniformity and

         19  standards in contracting practices in the way the

         20  service is provided to the kids and I believe

         21  there's got to be some cost savings as well, just

         22  having the same kinds of operations being run under

         23  one entity within the City of New York.  I turn the

         24  floor over to Council Member Sears.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Thank you Mr.

                                                            107

          1  EDUCATION AND TRANSPORTATION

          2  Chair.  Good morning.  I'll be very brief and I

          3  appreciate the courtesy.  In just listening, it

          4  seems that this whole transportation issue is

          5  embroiled in a tri- agency bureaucracy.  So, I

          6  suggest that when you do your internal reviewing,

          7  that you look at how you can reduce this

          8  bureaucratic maze.

          9                 The one contract's by bus, one

         10  contract's by student, one is responsible for the

         11  condition of it.  My question, one question to you,

         12  is when you contract by student, is that based upon

         13  attendance or it based upon the initial

         14  registration?  Because I would think that that would

         15  affect the busing contract.  Because you said it's

         16  based on student.

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  It's

         18  paid, there, it's paid for by student.  The, there's

         19  a slight difference between the programs that are

         20  early intervention and the programs that are for the

         21  Board of Ed., I'm sorry, the Department of Ed. On

         22  the early intervention programs, it's paid by

         23  attendance.  In the Board of Ed. Program, in the

         24  Board of Ed. Program, it's, there are, I believe, 20

         25  days, where, whether a child rides or doesn't ride,
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          2  that the contractor will get paid.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Okay, now I

          4  asked that for a specific reason --

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

          6  Sure.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  -- I would

          8  think that for those that contract by student,

          9  recognizing the attendance and registration, that

         10  that would affect the bidding process.  You have

         11  state that you have 2,567 students, 419 buses to go

         12  to 89 schools outside the City.  Now, my question

         13  is, is the, alright, well, you're all one big maze,

         14  so whoever can answer the question is alright, and I

         15  say that respectfully, because I think I know both

         16  of you for a while.

         17                 Is the bidding process for the buses

         18  that are going out to Westchester, Suffolk, Nassau,

         19  Rockland Counties, New Jersey and Connecticut, is

         20  that bidding process different from those that bid

         21  for the five boroughs, or is it the same and they

         22  all go into one pot and then you pick who is the

         23  lowest bidder?

         24                 MR. OESTREICHER:  The bidding process

         25  is not different than it is for the five boroughs,
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          2  but the item is put out.  We may have an item such

          3  as a mini wagon to Rockland County or something like

          4  that, and that's, that is, the companies will then

          5  bid on that, it's not just one big bid, they will

          6  bid on that specific item, same process, same

          7  companies, and they will put in the bids for who

          8  wants to, what's the price they will give for that

          9  route from --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  So, they bid

         11  on routes, is that it?

         12                 MR. OESTREICHER:  They bid, it's

         13  called an item, they will bid on, an item would be

         14  the type of vehicle and the location.  It could be

         15  within Manhattan, within borough, between boroughs,

         16  outside the City.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  So, are there

         18  minimum bids for those outside the City?

         19                 MR. OESTREICHER:  Are there minimum

         20  bids?

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Yes, in other

         22  words, is there a minimum that you will accept a

         23  bid, what is the lowest it can -- well, I'm not

         24  wording that right, because you do take the lowest

         25  bidder.  So, in other words, there has to be some
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          2  difference for a bus that from where they start is

          3  going into Manhattan or into Queens or into

          4  Brooklyn, as contrasted to Connecticut and New

          5  Jersey.

          6                 MR. OESTREICHER:  No question, those

          7  items would be the --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  So that's what

          9  I'm asking, so do you allow a, I mean, what is the

         10  basis for how you accept the lowest bidder if the

         11  distances are so great and there is such a disparity

         12  in the distances?

         13                 MR. OESTREICHER:  Well, it will tend

         14  to be a higher bid for that item.  Even the lowest

         15  bidder there will be much higher than the low bid

         16  for the other item.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  So, you have a

         18  different criteria in terms of --

         19                 MR. OESTREICHER:  Not a different

         20  criteria, we lay it out, it's offered up as a route

         21  to take kids in a mini bus to New Jersey.  Okay.

         22  That's what's offered up.  We'll take the bids and

         23  then the low bid for that item could be the same

         24  company that's doing another one, but he can, it's

         25  not the same price that he's offering for his within
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          2  Manhattan.  He may be taking kids within Manhattan,

          3  within Staten Island, he's offering a price for

          4  that, for that type of vehicle with that location.

          5                 In this case, we're asking for a bid,

          6  because we know the bid is going to be different.

          7  You're right.  It has to be a different price

          8  because gas is going to be higher --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  That's why I

         10  asked --

         11                 MR. OESTREICHER:  --  You're going to

         12  be paying --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  -- It's the

         14  distances.

         15                 MR. OESTREICHER:  -- Overtime --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Right.

         17                 MR. OESTREICHER:  For his staff,

         18  because they're not going to get back until late.

         19  So, there are different considerations it has to be,

         20  so the bid will be higher.  Those routes tend to be

         21  much more expensive than the in- City routes. So,

         22  having the growth in the number of children who go

         23  to schools outside the City or special ed.

         24  Facilities that are felt that they must go to these

         25  schools and there are not schools in the City that
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          2  can accommodate them, that drives up the

          3  transportation costs, there's no doubt about it.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Do you have

          5  dispatchers within either agency?  Because, when the

          6  Chairman was asking about reporting and statistics,

          7  do you maintain a dispatcher that absolutely has the

          8  routes when they start, when they return?

          9                 MR. OESTREICHER:  We don't have

         10  dispatchers because we don't run the operations, the

         11  operations are run by our contractors.  But, we have

         12  every route, we know about every route, is on our

         13  website as well.  We'll know every route, we'll know

         14  the location and the stops for every route.  We --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  So, then

         16  actually --

         17                 MR. OESTREICHER:  -- Can just call it

         18  up on the system.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  -- It's your

         20  contractors who have to report just how they are on

         21  a timely basis.  Is that correct?

         22                 MR. OESTREICHER:  Right.  Well, it's

         23  not just the contractor, the contractors are

         24  supposed to report if there's a route that we

         25  designed that they're having trouble meeting the
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          2  timing requirements on.  However, we also rely on

          3  the schools and on the parents.  We have an on- line

          4  system for the school, so if buses are arriving

          5  late, the schools notify us, some do more than

          6  others, of course.  Some schools are very active and

          7  they'll notify us that the buses are getting there

          8  late.  That could lead to a violation against the

          9  company.  It will lead to a violation assessed, a

         10  notice of violation, we'll evaluate it, we'll call

         11  the company in.

         12                 If, in fact, the problem is ours, we

         13  made a mistake in the routing, it's not really the

         14  company's fault, we did not design a good route,

         15  which happens, tends to happen more at the beginning

         16  at the year, we will adjust the route.  We'll

         17  probably have to add a bus or just reallocate.  If,

         18  in fact, we feel it's a good route and the company's

         19  just not managing it well and drivers getting there

         20  late or whatever, we will issue a violation, a

         21  financial penalty to the company for not getting

         22  there in time.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  If those

         24  companies are receiving several violations and in

         25  violation of their contract, do they have the right
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          2  to bid again when their contract is up? And, what do

          3  you have as a proviso so that they would not

          4  actually and what they change so that they do not

          5  repeat those violations?

          6                 MR. OESTREICHER:  Well we, we monitor

          7  the company's performance, every company's

          8  performance, relative to each other and we will call

          9  in those companies that are at the bottom.  As we

         10  said, we are extending the contact, so it wasn't a

         11  matter of disqualifying them from bidding or going

         12  to an RFP or anything like that.  But, we monitor

         13  them and there is one company which, who we are not

         14  going to extend with because of certain things that

         15  happened during their performance during the year.

         16                 So, in effect, we're just not going

         17  to extend with them.  But, generally, our company,

         18  we monitor the companies and we haven't seen the

         19  performances been, other than that particular one,

         20  to the point where we would, in effect, have to

         21  default the company and just say, you know, we will

         22  not deal with you any more.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Okay, and just

         24  a final question.  How often, and you may have

         25  answered this, so I'm sorry if I'm repeating it, how
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          2  often are those buses inspected by the State and you

          3  are given a report, either by the State or by the

          4  bus company?

          5                 MR. OESTREICHER:  Twice a year.

          6  Every bus gets inspected twice a year.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  And who gives

          8  you the report?

          9                 MR. OESTREICHER:  New York State DOT.

         10    They will inspect the buses and they will give us

         11  a report on those buses, on what the results of

         12  those inspections were.  But, the key thing is, if a

         13  bus does not pass the inspection, they will not give

         14  the bus a sticker.  That bus cannot be on the road

         15  without a sticker.  If we catch a bus on the road

         16  without a sticker, that's our own inspections, it's

         17  one of the things our inspectors look at, there will

         18  be a significant penalty to the company.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Is the bidding

         20  process something you would like to have reviewed,

         21  where you must accept the lowest bidder?

         22                 MR. OESTREICHER:  Well, again, we --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  And I

         24  recognize that you said that the contracts, the

         25  contractors are very limited and I can understand
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          2  why.

          3                 MR. OESTREICHER:  We are going to

          4  extend. However, had we gone forward with the bid,

          5  we might have chosen the RFP, as opposed to RFB,

          6  route, which would have allowed us to choose the

          7  contractor on other criteria other than strictly

          8  price.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  So, are you

         10  using that or are you --

         11                 MR. OESTREICHER:  Well, we're

         12  extending the contracts.  So, we're not going out to

         13  bid or RFP for the next five years.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  And then will

         15  you make that change permanently or --

         16                 MR. OESTREICHER:  We could, under

         17  State law, that was a recently innovation of the

         18  State law.  The State law, until recently, did not

         19  allow you to do bus contracts on anything but a

         20  strict bid basis.  There is, that was a recent

         21  change, I think that law in 2007, so if that is

         22  renewed and we do go forward that way, we, I would

         23  generally prefer to do it the RFPs, so not be

         24  totally beholding to price only, because there are

         25  service issues as well, and those are the things we
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          2  are dealing with on the extension side and we're

          3  getting service improvements.  But, you'd certainly

          4  want to know the service record, the accident record

          5  of the company, the record of its drivers and so

          6  forth.  Those would all be things, if you do

          7  strictly on a bid, once they meet the minimum

          8  qualifications, then it's just strictly on a price

          9  basis.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Thank you very

         11  much and I thank my colleague, Mr. McMahon, for

         12  letting me go before him, thank you.  And, thank you

         13  Mr. Chair.

         14                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you

         15  Council Member Sears.  Questions from Council Member

         16  Jackson.  Chivalry is not dead, Council Member

         17  McMahon.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Thank you

         19  Mr. Chairman. I want to thank you and Council Member

         20  Moskowitz for convening this Hearing.  I don't know

         21  if we've ever met at a Hearing before, I don't think

         22  we have, and sometimes in this process things get a

         23  little heated in their exchanges, I don't want you

         24  to take anything personally, because I know you're

         25  doing your job to the best of your ability.  But, I
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          2  want you to know that on behalf of at least the

          3  people on Staten Island, who have special needs

          4  children, particularly, I have to express the

          5  outrage of what I've heard here this morning in

          6  terms of the lack of tight supervision, of the lack,

          7  not the lack, but this bureaucratic maze that we

          8  find ourselves in and not knowing why one agency's

          9  charged with the pre- school children who have

         10  special needs and another agency is charged with

         11  those in the general population or special needs in

         12  kindergarten above.

         13                 I'm especially outraged at the lack

         14  of follow through on the issue of whether or not

         15  there are buses out there traveling on our streets

         16  and taking our children to school that may have some

         17  sort of defective condition and not following- up on

         18  that, and if it's not because of a defective

         19  condition and because of sloppy maintenance and poor

         20  maintaining of these vehicles, then I express the

         21  outrage even further.

         22                 I want you to think of this, and

         23  Chairman Liu talked about the thought that any

         24  parent has when they have their child, but for a

         25  minute, imagine yourself the parent of a special

                                                            119

          1  EDUCATION AND TRANSPORTATION

          2  needs child on Staten Island, whose in not yet in

          3  kindergarten and pre- k, and as the Chairman said,

          4  any parent who has a child, the moment that child

          5  leaves the house, whether the child is two years-

          6  old, six years- old or 35 years- old, you know that

          7  the parent is concerned about that child's welfare.

          8  I have two children.  I don't have children of

          9  special needs, but I can imagine that when you have

         10  a child with special needs, you're concerns are even

         11  more.

         12                 Now, consider this, for the last five

         13  years, the parents and advocates of children with

         14  special needs have been saying to the Department of

         15  Transportation there is a problem with the company

         16  that you are charging to take our children to school

         17  every day.  They started writing to the Commissioner

         18  in 2001, if not sooner.  And, in 2003, I wrote to

         19  the Commissioner. I was promised a response that I

         20  never got back.  Parents have written to the

         21  Commissioner and said it, and Ms. Denkinson

         22  (phonetic) has been aware of this, that there are

         23  problems with the Rimar bus company, it's been said

         24  for years, and what they were told in 2003 was,

         25  don't worry, we fixed the problems, everything's
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          2  okay now.

          3                 Now, these parents have to continue

          4  entrusting their children to this company and to

          5  your agencies, who are charged with getting them to

          6  school safely back and forth everyday.  Then, there

          7  are these stories, and this is what's happened in

          8  the last months on Staten Island -- first, I want to

          9  say I have a letter here from July 14, 2004, from a

         10  mother of a special needs adult who was on an Ozram

         11  bus, which is a related company to Rimar, that had a

         12  fire on July 12, 2004.

         13                 As you know, in January of this year,

         14  there was a fire on a bus that was taking children

         15  to school on Staten Island, and but for the quick

         16  thinking of the bus driver and the matron, there

         17  could have been fatalities.

         18                 As you also know, there's been an

         19  employee of this company who has come forward and

         20  said, we switched material around and supplies

         21  around on these buses and different parts of the

         22  buses, so that we could dummy up the buses so they

         23  could pass State regulation.  Those stories are out

         24  there.  I don't know if they're true or not, but we

         25  know that those stories are out there.
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          2                 As you also know, the New York State

          3  Department of Transportation has issued these

          4  companies numerous violations on their buses and

          5  that continues to pile up.  Would you feel safe now

          6  in the shoes of the child with special needs, would

          7  you put your child on these buses everyday?  Mr.

          8  Altschuler, would you?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

         10  Well, I have two children.  They are, they are older

         11  now, but, did I put them on buses?  Yes.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MCMAHON:  Knowing

         13  everything that I told you about this company,

         14  knowing that parents have made complaints, not,

         15  safety issues, on- time issues, conditions of the

         16  buses, for years, and now to have a fire, and now to

         17  have allegations -- oh, and by the way, another one

         18  of their buses was involved in an accident, which

         19  was not with a DOT contract and not special needs,

         20  with senior citizens, but it was found that that bus

         21  driver should not have been driving a bus because he

         22  had felony convictions for drug use or sale, I'm not

         23  even sure.  I don't mean to disparage that person.

         24                 But, there's layer after layer after

         25  layer of problems with this company.  And, I want to
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          2  know when your child was three years- old, would you

          3  have put your child on a bus knowing all of what I

          4  just told you, run by a company that has all these

          5  charges, all these allegations and all these

          6  problems, would you put your child on that bus?

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

          8  Well, I'm not sure about the, the validity of the

          9  allegations --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Neither am

         11  I, but, they exist.  We know there were fires.  We

         12  know that there were violations issued by the DOT.

         13  We know that there are problems -- oh, I'm sorry,

         14  and there's one other story, in January, another

         15  driver from this company was involved in a road rage

         16  incident with an advocate, coincidentally with an

         17  advocate for special needs children, and that was

         18  also reported on and that bus driver was eventually

         19  fired by the company, they acted appropriately

         20  there.

         21                 I'm not on a witch hunt against this

         22  company.  I'm not here to put them out of business

         23  or anything else.  I'm here to advocate on behalf of

         24  these parents and their children. Knowing the facts

         25  that you do know, that there were these certain
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          2  incidents that cannot be gainsaid in any way, and

          3  knowing all these other rumors, investigated or not,

          4  would you put your child on this bus every morning?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  Yes.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  You must be

          7  kidding.

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  No.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  You wouldn't

         10  be concerned that there were buses that, breakdowns,

         11  fires, drivers charged with misconduct, that would

         12  not be a concern for you?

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  I'm

         14  concerned about my kids every minute of the day.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Exactly, but

         16  you wouldn't be extra concerned?  And, you know,

         17  this isn't fair, because I don't mean to involve

         18  your children in the discussion.  But, do you think

         19  a parent of a special needs child should feel

         20  comfortable with putting their child on one of these

         21  buses in the morning, knowing all these problems?

         22  Would you say it's fair to say that that parent

         23  would be warranted to have some very, very deep

         24  concerns about --

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  At
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          2  this point --            COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  --

          3  Doing this.

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  --

          5  They are allegations of problems.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  The fire is

          7  not an allegation.  The violation for having drivers

          8  with drug convictions is not an allegation.  The

          9  road rage incident is not an allegations.

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  But,

         11  was it a --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  The years of

         13  late schedules, your own staff in 2003 admitted that

         14  there were problems with this company, but they were

         15  going to be resolved. So, yes, there are some that

         16  are just allegations, but there are others that are

         17  fact.  Do you think a parent on Staten Island should

         18  feel comfortable about this system, the way it's

         19  operating now, that puts this company in the front

         20  line of transporting their child to school every

         21  day?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTLSCHULER:  I

         23  don't think I can speak to whether a parent should

         24  be comfortable with anything.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Are you
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          2  concerned as an administrator of this program of all

          3  these facts and allegations that I've laid --

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  Of

          5  course.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  -- Out for

          7  you?  What have you done about them?

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  In

          9  what sense?

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  What

         11  investigation have you undertaken of this company?

         12  How have you talked with the Department of

         13  Transportation, New York State, to find out how many

         14  violations they have?  What inspections have you

         15  done of their equipment?  Have you reviewed their

         16  contract?  Have you made a determination not to

         17  renew a contract with this company? Have you

         18  communicated with the parents who use this service

         19  every day to allay their fears and concerns?  What

         20  have you done to deal with this issue?

         21                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Council Member,

         22  I think the answer was clear already, they haven't

         23  done anything except to make the calls to the nine

         24  company, where, that used the same model bus.  I

         25  think that's been made clear already --
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  I understand

          3  that Mr. Chairman --

          4                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  -- And --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  -- But the

          6  concern is not only the fire.  The concern is

          7  showing up late.  The concern is having drivers who

          8  are not qualified.  The concern is an allegation by

          9  a former employee about the switching of parts, so

         10  that the buses can be dummied- up to pass State

         11  licensing requirements.  I want to know what's been

         12  done to guarantee that this company is operating up

         13  to the standards that you expect from all your

         14  vendors?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  In

         16  this particular company, both we and the State have

         17  stepped up inspections of them.  The, there were

         18  contracts that were scheduled to be renewed with

         19  them that are not being renewed.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Which

         21  contracts?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

         23  We'll give you which specific schools.  I don't have

         24  that with me.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Their
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          2  contracts to provide services for children on Staten

          3  Island --

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  Yes.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  -- Is up for

          6  renewal June of this year.  Are those contracts --

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  Not

          8  being renewed.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  They are not

         10  being renewed?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  The

         12  contracts that we had, were originally going to

         13  renew with them are not being renewed, that's --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  How many

         15  contracts are, do you know for how many children?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  Not

         17  off the top of my head.  We'll get you that.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  You will let

         19  me know that?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

         21  Absolutely.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  And, now the

         23  other contracts that are in, that will be still not

         24  closed after that? Still in existence?

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  They
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          2  still have existing contracts, yes.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  And will

          4  those be renewed when they come up?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  I

          6  can't really speak to that right now.  I don't know

          7  when they expire.  But, there are currently

          8  contracts that are out for bid or that have been

          9  recently bid and it is not, the statement was made

         10  that award is made to the lowest bidder, which is

         11  the general theory about it, but that is not, in

         12  fact, the case.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Do you have

         14  the ability to apply quality and past performance

         15  and other standards to the bid process?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

         17  That's a part of what goes into making a vendor

         18  responsibility determination.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  So, why was

         20  this company awarded these contracts two years ago,

         21  when all these complaints were presented to you by

         22  the parents of Staten Island?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

         24  Well, I will tell you the information I saw that was

         25  presented was, a lot of it was from the  '90's, from
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          2    '96,  '97, through  '99.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  I think it

          4  was from 2000, 2001 and 2002, from what I've seen,

          5  the letters I've seen.

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  I

          7  will only, I can only speak to what I saw sir.  The,

          8  and a lot of that were complaints that were made

          9  either to the school, but they did not come to us.

         10  So, when we look at an award, you look at what's in

         11  your records and a large number of, of those issues,

         12  I believe, were referred to late arrivals, and they

         13  were several years before.  This is what I saw.  We

         14  didn't have any correlation in our files.  So, one

         15  of the things that's very important is for parents

         16  and schools to pass those complaints to us.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Well, I

         18  think there are some parents and advocates here who

         19  would say that, would argue that, that they were

         20  provided.  But --

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  I --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  -- Let me

         23  just go back for one --

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  --

         25  Recently? Yes, recently, the number --
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  You have

          3  received them?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  --

          5  Of complaints --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Alright.

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  --

          8  Have gone up.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  And you are,

         10  and to your credit and I commend you, you're now

         11  acting on that.  I just want to be clear that these

         12  contracts at issue will not be renewed with this

         13  company given the present circumstances and facts as

         14  you know them?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  The,

         16  the contracts that we had originally planned to

         17  renew, we have rescheduled those and they will be

         18  going out for bid.  There are contracts -- I don't

         19  know if you were here when we discussed -- we bid

         20  somewhere between 30 to 60 programs every six months

         21   --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  I was here.

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  So,

         24  when you speak about any particular vendor, they may

         25  have contracts that are expiring, contracts that may
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          2  have been awarded six months prior and contracts

          3  that are mid- term.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Until this

          5  company takes corrective actions that you may deem

          6  fit, will they be allowed to bid on any DOT

          7  contracts?

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  I

          9  can't stop a company from bidding.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Will any of

         11  their bids be accepted until you --

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

         13  Well, everyone who bids, their bid is accepted and

         14  it's evaluated.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Will they be

         16  awarded any contracts?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

         18  That, I am not in a position to say.  Those bids

         19  that are out there right now, are currently under

         20  review and --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  So, the

         22  contracts that are up in June that you're not

         23  renewing, that you're now going to put up to bid,

         24  they could come back and bid on that as well as

         25  receive those contracts?
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  In

          3  theory? Yes.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  In practice?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTLSCHULER:  In

          6  practice, it depends on the evaluation that's made

          7  to determine whether a vendor is responsible or not.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  And, do you

          9  have that power to make that determination?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

         11  Actually, the agency's Chief Contracting Officer.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Who is that?

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  His

         14  name is Paul Stanton.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Will he deem

         16  this vendor responsible given the current state of

         17  affairs?  I want to be able to go home to the people

         18  in Staten Island who I represent and say, you know

         19  what? Things are bad with this company, there's too

         20  much concern, until things are resolved, they will

         21  not be awarded any more contracts from DOT.  Can I

         22  say that?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  No,

         24  you can't. You can't.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Are things
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          2  bad enough that, can things reach a level with a

          3  provider that you will default them on the contract

          4  at DOT?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  Yes,

          6  and we have defaulted contracts.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Why has that

          8  not been done with this provider?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  As I

         10  said, the actual level of complaints that came into

         11  us about this contractor prior to the last six to

         12  eight months, have not been that.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Include the

         14  six to eight months now.

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  I

         16  think there --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  What has to

         18  happen before you declare a provider --

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  You

         20  have to, you have to look at what the complaints

         21  are.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  You have

         23  fires, you have employees who are not qualified, you

         24  have issues of road rage, drivers doing road rage,

         25  you have allegations, I know they're allegations of
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          2  malfeasance in terms of the --

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

          4  Well, but I can't default the contractor on

          5  allegations.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  But, when

          7  you take the whole picture, together --

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  But,

          9  it's still-

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  -- Things

         11  that are confirmed and things that are not

         12  confirmed.

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  I

         14  cannot default a contractor on anything that cannot

         15  stand up, and allegations will not stand up.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Are you

         17  investigating the allegations, the employee who said

         18  that they're dummying up the buses?  Have you

         19  investigated those allegations?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  Yes,

         21  and the indications that we have is that that

         22  employee never worked on that bus, and the part that

         23  he claims to have removed and replaced for

         24  inspection and then removed and put back the old

         25  one, according to a conversation that I had with
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          2  State DOT, that part doesn't exist on that bus.  So,

          3  there are some significant-

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Disparities

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  --

          6  Concerns.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Okay, and I

          8  accept that-

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  And

         10  I think others are looking into that as well.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  And I accept

         12  the fact they're allegations and there, and I'm

         13  happy to know that you did investigate that and I

         14  appreciate that as well.  Mr. Chairman, I know you

         15  want to move this along, so I will conclude.

         16                 Obviously, the people are not happy,

         17  the parents are not happy.  I urge you and I urge

         18  Commissioner Weinshall to continue to monitor this

         19  situation.  The parents do not feel safe.  They do

         20  not feel that their children are being cared for

         21  properly.  They do not feel that this is an

         22  acceptable situation. You must do something to

         23  correct it.  I urge you to do that.

         24                 I also urge you both to go back to

         25  the office and find a way, so that the service that
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          2  you are providing is rolled into the Office of Pupil

          3  Transportation.  When, I started, we started in an

          4  office, I was shocked to learn that in Queens, there

          5  were tens of thousands of bus riders every day who

          6  are not getting MTA buses, and in our first budget

          7  Hearings, we said that's something to correct.  To

          8  the Bloomberg Administration's credit, that is being

          9  corrected.  If you can do it to that magnitude, to

         10  actually take over private bus lines and put them in

         11  the public domain, then certainly you can find a way

         12  to take this service and put it into the Office of

         13  Pupil Transportation, so that there's one standard,

         14  there is one agency that's doing it and there's one

         15  responsible group that the parents can communicate

         16  with.

         17                 I think, I'm assuming that you

         18  probably agree with me, although you probably can't

         19  say it here on the record.  I don't know if you can

         20  or not.  And, I also want you to know that I've

         21  directed my staff to submit legislation today, so

         22  that if you can't do it administratively, we will do

         23  it legislatively. Thank you Mr. Chairman.  Thank you

         24  for your indulgence.

         25                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you
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          2  Council Member McMahon.  We've been joined by

          3  Council Member Diana Reyna, Council Member from

          4  Brooklyn, Council Member Sarah Gonzalez from

          5  Brooklyn and also Dominic Recchia from Brooklyn as

          6  well.  We have questions from Council Member

          7  Jackson.

          8                 I have one very quick question for

          9  Marty, which corresponding to a question I asked

         10  Howard before.  Does the Department of Education

         11  desire to take over those bus operations that

         12  currently are run by the Department of

         13  Transportation?

         14                 MR. OESTREICHER:  It's not a matter

         15  of us desiring or not desiring.  If we take a look

         16  at the operations and it turns out that it makes

         17  more sense to have them in the Department of

         18  Education, we'll be glad to take them in the

         19  Department of Education.

         20                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  You run the

         21  operations at the Department of Education, would you

         22  be, would the Department be well equipped to assume

         23  responsibility for the operations of the pre-

         24  kindergarten special education students that

         25  currently are handled by the Department of
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          2  Transportation?  Are you well equipped to do so?

          3                 MR. OESTREICHER:  Well equipped, we'd

          4  have to study the whole operation, from a to z.  We

          5  have a familiarity with it and after we study it --

          6  could we do it if we had to do it?  I'm sure we

          7  could.  Can we do it with the current staffing level

          8  we now have, who runs OPT?  No.  We would need

          9  either the staff from DOT or some other changes --

         10                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Well, of

         11  course, I mean the DOT has a budget to run those

         12  operations.

         13                 MR. OESTREICHER:  So, if you're

         14  saying could we take it --

         15                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  If that budget

         16  was given to your Department, do you think you would

         17  be able to run these buses?

         18                 MR. OESTREICHER:  I think we could do

         19  anything if we had to.  If that, if that was the way

         20  the City felt it should be run and we felt that was

         21  the way it could go, it should go, we could do it.

         22  I'm sure we could do it, just like we do the regular

         23  transportation.  But, I mean, it has to be a

         24  consensus in the City that that's really where it

         25  belongs and if that's what the feeling is --
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          2                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  We don't get

          3  any sense that the Administration is seriously

          4  looking at combining the operations under one roof.

          5  Given that's the case, I would certainly concur with

          6  the latest comments by Council Member McMahon that

          7  if it's not being looked at proactively by the

          8  Administration, which it does not seem to be the

          9  case, then we will have to undertake it through a

         10  legislative process.  Council Member Jackson.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Well, thank

         12  you.  Let me just say that I think that some of the

         13  responses that you've given, both of you, leave a

         14  lot to be desired.  I have a couple of questions.

         15  As far as contracts are concerned, I understand that

         16  you are looking to extend contracts for the

         17  Department of Education, and I've heard you talk

         18  about that your contracts are for a three year

         19  period and some of them are renewed every six

         20  months, I believe.

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  They

         22  are not renewed, they are some number of programs or

         23  existing contracts that expire.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  That expire.

         25    And, then you renew those programs?
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

          3  They're rebid.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  They're

          5  rebid.  So, I'm curious in asking Marty, if DOT can

          6  bid every three years and then contracts expire and

          7  they're renewing on a continuous basis, why can't

          8  DOE do that?

          9                 MR. OESTREICHER:  It's not a matter

         10  of can, it's a matter of what's the best cost for

         11  the City and the service and we, and in terms of

         12  cost and price.  And, we believe, when we did our

         13  evaluation going forward now, for the next five

         14  years, that in comparing the cost and the service

         15  enhancements that we could obtain going out to bid

         16  versus doing it via an extension, we felt the best

         17  route for the City to take was via the extension

         18  route. We believe we got, saved a very significant

         19  amount of money --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Right.

         21                 MR. OESTREICHER:  -- Over being bid

         22  and we're getting a significant amount of service

         23  enhancements at the same time.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay.  So,

         25  in essence, the contracts are going to be amended
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          2  and, in order to include these enhancements --

          3                 MR. OESTREICHER:  Yes, that's

          4  correct.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Is that what

          6  you're saying to me?

          7                 MR. OESTREICHER:  Absolutely.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay.  Now,

          9  I've heard you and other officials of the Department

         10  of Education talk about that it's more cost-

         11  effective and better to extend rather than open up a

         12  process for open competitiveness.  I've asked you,

         13  and I ask you again now, don't you think that we

         14  should open up a piece of this huge $550 million

         15  contracts that you have for busing to an open

         16  competitive process to see whether or not what type

         17  of situation you get and responses you receive from

         18  an open competitive process rather than just

         19  extending the contracts, like you're doing?

         20                 MR. OESTREICHER:  Well, we probably

         21  would not have been able to extend if we had to

         22  carve out pieces for the RFP.  I mean, that's part

         23  of the agreement, is to extend the contracts as they

         24  exist.  It's not a bad idea.  It's not something we

         25  haven't considered at some time if it was, if we
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          2  could do it.

          3                 But, at this point, we, based on

          4  studies and we looked at other localities that did

          5  go to bid and what their cost increases were, and

          6  based on what we know what the inclination is of

          7  other bus companies not already in the New York area

          8  to get into the New York area, we felt that what you

          9  would have would be many of the same companies

         10  competing against themselves in an RFP, and we have

         11  a sense of where, of what, where those prices would

         12  go and in that case, the point of the RFP or B,

         13  which is to get a lot of competition from a lot of

         14  different companies, would not have been achieved in

         15  this case, yet the cost would have gone up much more

         16  dramatically --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  That's an

         18  assumption though --

         19                 MR. OESTREICHER:  -- And we could

         20  extend it.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  -- Is that

         22  correct?

         23                 MR. OESTREICHER:  It's based on

         24  analysis, it's not --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  But that's

                                                            143

          1  EDUCATION AND TRANSPORTATION

          2  why, but, how many companies are you contracting

          3  with for bus services in New York City, the

          4  Department of Education, how many?

          5                 MR. OESTREICHER:  Including general

          6  ed. And special ed., 53.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  53 bus

          8  companies.  Do you know how many bus companies exist

          9  in the New York City metropolitan area that could

         10  possibly bid on the, an RFP if you put it out?

         11                 MR. OESTREICHER:  I don't know the

         12  exact number, but we do know some --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  What's your

         14  guess?

         15                 MR. OESTREICHER:  I don't know.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  You have no

         17  idea?

         18                 MR. OESTREICHER:  No idea.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  So, if you

         20  don't have any idea, how do you know that you're not

         21  going to receive more competition?

         22                 MR. OESTREICHER:  Well, we know what

         23  some of the biggest companies are that would be able

         24  to handle the type of work load we have and we

         25  contacted those companies.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay.

          3                 MR. OESTREICHER:  And there was a

          4  negative reaction from all those companies except

          5  for one, who was maybe, possibly, but was deterred

          6  somewhat, not some, but a lot, by breaking into the

          7  New York market and getting the real estate and

          8  labor costs that are involved here.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay.  Well,

         10  now, have you had on your buses, fires within the

         11  past year?

         12                 MR. OESTREICHER:  No.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  And the

         14  process as far inspection of buses as, it's the same

         15  as that is used by New York City DOT, is that

         16  correct?  Meaning that the State DOT examines the

         17  buses twice a year and certifies that they're safe,

         18  is that correct?

         19                 MR. OESTREICHER:  They certify the

         20  mechanical portions of the bus.  We do our own

         21  inspections, as I believe DOT does, for other safety

         22  features on the bus.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  I see.

         24                 MR. OESTREICHER:  We have our own

         25  inspectors, things like the stop sign, the alarms,
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          2  the lights --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  When you say

          4  we, you mean the Department of Education?

          5                 MR. OESTREICHER:  That's correct.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay, do you

          7  have your own bus inspectors or do you have a

          8  contractor that does the inspection on the other

          9  parts, not, that are not mechanical?

         10                 MR. OESTREICHER:  No, we have our own

         11  inspectors.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  You have

         13  your own inspectors.  And, what about DOT, Mr.

         14  Altschuler, what is your title and position in DOT?

         15  You're Assistant Director or Director of

         16  Procurement?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  No,

         18  I'm Deputy Commissioner.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Deputy

         20  Commissioner.  And procurement comes under your

         21  jurisdiction?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  Yes,

         23  it does.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay.  As

         25  far DOT, DOT, State DOT inspects the safety of the
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          2  buses every two years, I mean every six months, is

          3  that correct?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

          5  Correct.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  And, that's

          7  just for the safety aspects, as Mr. Oestreicher

          8  indicated, is that correct?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  They

         10  do mechanical inspections and certify the buses --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay, --

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  --

         13  Are safe to ride on.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  -- But what

         15  about non mechanical?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  We

         17  have a team of inspectors as well.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  That's New

         19  York City DOT?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  Yes.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  And they, I

         22  assume --

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

         24  They're employees.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  They're
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          2  employees of DOT, and I assume that it's at least

          3  twice a year also?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  It

          5  could often be more.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  No, what is

          7  the normal routine of it, as far as inspection?

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  Let

          9  me --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  DOT, State

         11   --

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  No

         13   --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  -- DOT, let

         15  me ask the question, State DOT inspects the

         16  mechanical aspects twice a year --

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

         18  Right.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  -- What is,

         20  from an operation, what is the m.o. Of the

         21  operation's point of view, how often, minimally, are

         22  they inspected for other than mechanical?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  It's

         24  not a --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Do you have
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          2  a regulation --

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  Let

          4  me --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  -- Do you

          6  have a rule or a policy?

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  Let

          8  me just try and --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay.

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  What

         11  State DOT, they have a schedule, they're mandated

         12  every two months, every six months.  Our inspectors

         13  generally will be at a school, they will pull a bus

         14  over, they will go to a garage.  It is a much more

         15  roving or fluid type of inspection.  So, the same

         16  bus might get inspected five times in a week, just

         17  by way of where it shows up.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  For other

         19  than mechanical?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  For

         21  other than mechanical, and those things are, as

         22  Marty --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Switch back

         24  to the Department of Education, what's the minimum

         25  inspections, other than mechanical, on a yearly
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          2  basis?

          3                 MR. OESTREICHER:  We try to hit every

          4  bus twice a year.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Twice a

          6  year.

          7                 MR. OESTREICHER:  Also twice a year.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Basically

          9  around the, twice a year is the minimum as far,

         10  which is the mechanical inspections.

         11                 MR. OESTREICHER:  But that's, and we

         12  also do the non- mechanical --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Right.

         14                 MR. OESTREICHER:  -- Twice, with our

         15  own inspectors.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Is that done

         17  at the same time?

         18                 MR. OESTREICHER:  No.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  It's not?

         20                 MR. OESTREICHER:  No.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay.  And,

         22  does your inspectors have a right to pull a bus off

         23  of line if, in fact, they --

         24                 MR. OESTREICHER:  Absolutely.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  They do?
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          2                 MR. OESTREICHER:  Absolutely.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  The same

          4  with you?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  Ours

          6  also.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay.  When

          8  I went to the restroom about ten minutes ago, a

          9  parent came up to me about Pinnacle Bus Company, and

         10  I don't know this bus company at all, it's in the

         11  Bronx.  And, she has a student at a school, and she

         12  indicated that the driver got two speeding tickets,

         13  and I think it's Department of Transportation,

         14  because her child is three years- old and with

         15  special needs.  So, I assume that's DOT, is that

         16  correct?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  Yes.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  And she

         19  indicated that the bus driver got two speeding

         20  tickets within one day.  What is the norm as far as

         21  when a bus driver gets two speeding tickets in one

         22  day, as far as what happens?  What does DOT, are

         23  they notified, or what happens in that situation?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  No,

         25  we're not, it would be nice if we were notified, but
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          2  no, we weren't notified of that.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  No, you're

          4  not notified?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  No.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Who do you

          7  have that evaluates the contract of Pinnacle Bus

          8  Company to determine whether or not its worthy of

          9  continuing its contract or the contract should be

         10  voided on the spot?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  Well

         12   --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  You can void

         14  a contract, is that correct?  If they're not living

         15  up to their responsibility or if it's not in the

         16  best interest of the people that --

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  Well

         18   --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Let me just

         20  finish the question, please, if you don't mind.  If

         21  it's not in the best interest of the children, the

         22  people that you're serving, the children, that are

         23  young, that cannot say, hey, you're going too fast,

         24  or that this bus is being operated unsafely, you can

         25  void a contract for those reasons, can you?
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

          3  Well, every contract has a termination for

          4  convenience clause.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay.

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

          7  Okay?  But, in, in a case that you are describing,

          8  and let's --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Yes.

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER: --

         11  For purposes of our conversation, let's treat it as

         12  a hypothetical, the, if --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  It's a real,

         14  it's not hypothetical.

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

         16  Well, when it comes, I don't, I, I don't know that

         17  this driver received two --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay, well I

         19  have-               DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

         20   -- Speeding tickets.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  -- A parent

         22  right here that asked the driver himself, and the

         23  driver, and the matron told her yes.

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

         25  Well, it would, if they could give that information
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          2  to us, we'll --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  I've already

          4  asked her to speak to the, to the legislative

          5  affairs person that's assigned to this Committee.

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

          7  Alright, well, we will look into it.  But, in a, to

          8  just terminate a contract for convenience is, is,

          9  while it's convenient and you get rid of the

         10  contractor, the, without a cause, how do you, how do

         11  you deal with them the next time they bid?

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  I understand

         13   --

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  So,

         15  so --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  -- But I'm

         17  not talking about convenience.  See, you used the

         18  term convenience, I'm using --

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

         20  Well, but, you're --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  -- Term for

         22  cause, for excessive speeding --

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  Well

         24   --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  -- And for
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          2  if, let me just ask another, I'm sorry, let me let

          3  you respond.

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  Yea,

          5  let me --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Go ahead,

          7  but let's not talk about convenience, I'm not

          8  referring to convenience.

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  No,

         10  what you asked me was can I just void a contract.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay, well,

         12  why don't you just explain what convenience means

         13  under the contract, since you're the head of

         14  procurement.

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

         16  Convenience, it's just, it's just termination.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Just

         18  termination.  For any reason?

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  For,

         20  for the convenience of the City.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay.

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  But,

         23  if there are issues with the contractor, alright?

         24  There are lots of contractors, there are levels of

         25  severity, you try to, to resolve those issues.  But,
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          2  if you can't, there are conditions in the contract

          3  where we can default a contractor and if the issues

          4  continue to occur, continue to reoccur, we will and

          5  have, in the past, defaulted contractors.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  What is --

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

          8  That, that action, the significant difference is

          9  that that action becomes an item that's reported in

         10  Vendex, whereas a simple termination does not, and

         11  those are issues that you, you take into account the

         12  next time that contractor bids.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay.  Let

         14  me ask you a question.  Who reviews the contract to

         15  determine whether or not the contractor's living up

         16  to their obligation?  Who monitors the contracts?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  The

         18  Executive Director of pre- k.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Procurement,

         20  your procurement officer?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  No,

         22  the Executive Director for the Pre- K Division.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Pre- K

         24  Division.

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  That
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          2  person administers the contracts.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay.

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  If

          5  there's an, if there's a repeated issue, that person

          6  will bring it to the agency --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay.

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  --

          9  The contracting officer or myself and --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  And if

         11  parents of a particular school had complaints about

         12  the bus company, and I'm talking in general now,

         13  and, but also I'm talking specifically about the

         14  school that I'm referring to, and they have

         15  communicated these complaints to people, the

         16  Commissioner's Office, the Executive Director for

         17  Pre-K, Transportation's Director of Customer Service

         18  and to the company, bus owner or a company official

         19  of the bus company, and they have not gotten any

         20  satisfaction to the point where many parents are

         21  refusing to allow their children to ride on the bus,

         22  and they rather drive their children or find another

         23  means of taking their children to school, shouldn't

         24  that be, have been addressed by DOT, in your

         25  opinion?
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  Of

          3  course.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay.

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  I

          6  believe we take that responsibility very seriously.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay.

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

          9  Despite what the opinion may be.  But, the, the

         10  determination to default a contractor is a very

         11  serious one, as I'm sure you know, and --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  What is

         13  DOT's policy as far as the contractors are concerned

         14  about hiring convicted felons as bus drivers?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  We

         16  don't know if that is happening.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  No, no.  I

         18  asked you a question, I didn't ask you if you knew

         19  it was happening.  I asked you, what is your policy

         20  as far as contracting with a bus company and hiring

         21  convicted felons?  Convicted for a --

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  My

         23   --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  -- Felony,

         25  not a misdemeanor.
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  My

          3  understanding is they won't get a 19A certification.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Who's they?

          5  I'm sorry.

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  A

          7  driver's who convicted of a felony won't get a 19A

          8  certification.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  I'm sorry, I

         10  don't know what means.

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  A

         12  19A certification's issued by the Department of

         13  Motor Vehicles.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  And what

         15  does a 19A allow the driver to do?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

         17  Drive a school bus.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Drive a

         19  school bus. Okay.  So, every bus driver that is

         20  driving a school bus has a 19A certification from

         21  the New York State Motor Vehicles?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

         23  That's the requirement.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  And if they

         25   -- so, can a driver that's a convicted felon, of a
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          2  felony, can they get a 19A certification?

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  To

          4  my knowledge, no.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  You're

          6  knowledge, no, okay.  So, if someone brought to your

          7  attention that a bus company has hired convicted

          8  felons, that have felonies, and they're driving the

          9  school bus, I would assume that you'd look into that

         10  right away?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

         12  Absolutely.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay,

         14  because, you know, as I said, I got some information

         15  and they've heard your responses and I'm sure that

         16  they're going to follow- up on that and I've also

         17  referred them to the Mayor's Office of Legislative

         18  Affairs, Patrick, whose assigned here, and also I've

         19  communicated with them who their Member of the City

         20  Council is to do some additional follow- up.  So,

         21  you'll be hearing them, Mr. Altschuler, concerning

         22  their issues and concerns.  That's it for now John,

         23  thank you.

         24                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you

         25  Council Member Jackson.  We've been joined also by
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          2  Council Member Bill DeBlasio from Brooklyn and we,

          3  Council Member Recchia, have you cast your vote?  We

          4  left the role open.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  Yes, and I'd

          6  like to vote aye --

          7                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  There are two

          8  items, one --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  Aye for the

         10  Resolution and aye on the Intro.

         11                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay, thank

         12  you.  Yes, please, a quick follow- up from Robert

         13  Jackson.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Concerning

         15  the bus fire in Staten Island and I read the article

         16   -- where's the article Mike? -- And I read the

         17  article that Mike McMahon showed me, I think dated

         18  January 30th, where this driver indicated, one of

         19  the mechanics said that, you know, that they

         20  replaced parts, what have you and so forth.  Now,

         21  who's doing the investigation on that fire?  Is that

         22  State DOT that's doing an investigation or is your

         23  office doing an independent investigation or what?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  We

         25  don't have the ability to do that type of
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          2  investigation to determine what the cause of that

          3  fire would be and we've asked the State to do that.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  You've asked

          5  State DOT?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  And

          7  I believe they would do that as a normal, as part of

          8  their normal course of business.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  And what

         10  about investigating whether or not the mechanic's

         11  statements are true as to whether or not they've

         12  been switching stuff prior to the inspection and

         13  switching back?

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  As I

         15  said before, the information that's been presented

         16  to us is that that particular driver did not work --

         17  he made the statements that he swapped parts on that

         18  particular bus, I believe that's the statement he

         19  made in the paper.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay, but?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  And,

         22  the records indicate that he never worked on that

         23  bus.  So --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  How do you

         25  know that?
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

          3  Because we've seen the records.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  So, you've

          5  investigated these allegations made by that, by that

          6  mechanic, or you just, you called that bus company

          7  and said, bring the records of that bus in so we

          8  could look at them?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  We

         10  didn't do a formal investigation, the State has done

         11  that.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  The State

         13  has done that?

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  Yes,

         15  and we have seen those records, and --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Because,

         17  you're saying that  he never worked on that bus?

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

         19  Well, not only do the records indicate he didn't

         20  work on that bus --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  The records

         22  indicate that?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  But,

         24  the State DOT has told us the part he claims to have

         25  replaced does not exist on that bus.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  It's not

          3  what?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  Does

          5  not exist on that bus.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  On

          8  that model bus.  So, there are some concerns, and I

          9  understand other people are looking into this as

         10  well.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Do you think

         12  that complaints about that, the bus company that

         13  Mike cited, considering, in the paper, it said about

         14  40 or 45 percent of their buses failed inspection,

         15  do you believe that that is serious enough for New

         16  York City DOT to do an investigation on whether or

         17  not they should terminate, by convenience, that

         18  contract?

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  To

         20  terminate a contract for convenience doesn't, in a

         21  situation like this, doesn't really help.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  You mean if

         23  45 percent of a bus company's does not pass

         24  inspection and there's allegations of wrongdoing --

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  Well
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          2   --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Let me just

          4  finish, in which you have not invested -- when I

          5  say, you, DOT, New York City DOT has not

          6  investigated itself, just on the appearance of the

          7  details in the paper, it's seems as though that New

          8  York City DOT would want to do an investigation to

          9  determine whether or not wrongdoing is occurring at

         10  that bus company and not solely rely on State DOT

         11  and its investigation as to the cause of the fire.

         12  That's what I would think.  You don't think that as

         13  the head of procurement, as an associate or Deputy

         14  Commissioner?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

         16  Well, I know that others are --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Like whom?

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  I

         19  believe the Staten Island District Attorney's

         20  looking into this matter.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  But, what

         22  about, what about -- Staten Island District

         23  Attorney's Office is not the ones --

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

         25  Well, I --
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  -- That

          3  entered into contract --

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  --

          5  What I said we have done is we have, we and I

          6  believe the State, has also stepped up our

          7  inspections of the company.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  I'm just

          9  talking about an investigation to determine the

         10  reliability of that bus company, independent of

         11  State DOT doing its mechanical inspections,

         12  independent of the Staten Island District Attorney,

         13  I'm talking about New York City DOT.  I mean, New

         14  York City DOT, you have an investigative unit at

         15  DOT, isn't that correct?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  Not

         17  that I'm aware of.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  No?

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  No.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  You don't

         21  have any investigators at DOT?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  No.

         23  I believe that's the Department of Investigation's

         24   --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  I see --

                                                            166

          1  EDUCATION AND TRANSPORTATION

          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  --

          3  Purview.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay.  So,

          5  if you wanted New York City's Department of

          6  Investigation to do an investigation, you can just

          7  request that, isn't that correct? They work for the

          8  City of New York, New York City Department of

          9  Investigations?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  Yes.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Well, I

         12  would strongly urge you to look into requesting the

         13  New York City Department of Investigation to do a

         14  thorough investigation about this bus company that

         15  so many parents have complained about on Staten

         16  Island, and the Pinnacle Bus Company that I referred

         17  to, where a parent has told me that you have several

         18  convicted felons driving buses there.

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

         20  Okay.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay?  I'm

         22  going to be coming back to you, following- up on

         23  that.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Mr.

         25  Chairman, I just want to add in, if I may, and I
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          2  thank you for your indulgence again, that it's clear

          3  to me that the incidents in Staten Island have

          4  brought this to my attention and have really kind of

          5  brought this awareness together with the fire in the

          6  Bronx.  But, what I've also learned in this Hearing

          7  and from the testimony that we have from parents

          8  that are submitted up there, that the oversight of

          9  these bus companies, it sounds like many, really has

         10  to be stepped up.

         11                 I just want to say that and

         12  underscore my point that this is not a witch hunt

         13  against one company, but this a system- wide

         14  problem, because the complaints are City- wide.  So,

         15  I urge you to do that and again urge you to consider

         16  the consolidation of these efforts into one agency.

         17  Thank you Mr. Chairman.

         18                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you

         19  Council Members Jackson and McMahon.  We have

         20  questions, final questions from Council Member

         21  Recchia.  And, then after Council Member Recchia

         22  asks his questions, we would like to ask Migdalia

         23  Acevedo to prepare to testify.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  Yea, I'll be

         25  quick.  I just want to, Mr. Oestreicher, good
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          2  morning.  With today, right, when you look at it,

          3  and I know my colleague, Council Member Jackson was

          4  talking about it, you know, when you used the word

          5  assume, you just not assume, you did a study on

          6  this, on the increases with the different bus

          7  companies?

          8                 MR. OESTREICHER:  That's correct.  We

          9  did and also we had our consultants take a look and

         10  they did benchmarking in other localities in the

         11  northeast, take a look at what happened when they

         12  went through the bidding process and what was the

         13  impact on the cost, as well as surveying the local

         14  area and what they expected the cost increases to be

         15  if we went in that direction.  That's correct.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  Okay.  Now,

         17  with the DOT, you know, with the companies that you

         18  might RFP, put out, you might put out an RFP, is

         19  that correct, for those few companies?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  We

         21  competitively bid.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  What?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  We

         24  competitively bid.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  Right, and
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          2  when you competitively bid, you know, you look at

          3  what's on the table now and compare to what has come

          4  in, is that correct?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  I'm

          6  not sure what you mean.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  You're

          8  looking at your expenses that you're paying, right?

          9  For other companies, right? And then you look at the

         10  bids that came in, and that's how you know about the

         11  fairness of them.

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

         13  Well, it's one method.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  Is that,

         15  well, how you do it?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  No,

         17  that's just one of the, if you're talking about

         18  whether the pricing is fair and reasonable on a bid?

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  Yes.

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

         21  That's one of the things that is done.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  Alright, do

         23  you always take the lowest bid or do you take the --

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  We

         25  take the lowest responsive and responsible bidder.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  Right, and

          3  you look at the responsibility of the company.

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:  Yes.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  Okay, and I

          6  just want to make a statement and, you know, because

          7  I've been involved in this years ago and I know

          8  what's entailed about putting out new RFPs for bus

          9  companies and what could go on, because back in the

         10  1990's we tried this.  I was on a special committee

         11  because I was president of the school board, and I

         12  know that these bus companies would love nothing

         13  better than a new RFP to come out, because they

         14  would say with the price of insurance going up, the

         15  price of gasoline, they would just fluctuate and

         16  shoot up all the way.  Because, what happened the

         17  last time, is that that's when we decided to pull

         18  back the RFPs to make it go back and it caused

         19  chaos, but we resolved it.  That's an experience, a

         20  learning experience that I went through and I just

         21  wanted to share this with everybody.

         22                 I just want to clarify one thing.  If

         23  we do have problems with certain bus companies and

         24  we bring them to your attention, will you see to it

         25  that something is done to them?
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          2                 MR. OESTREICHER:  Absolutely.  We

          3  have a whole violation system, there's a substantial

          4  amount of financial penalties that we impose against

          5  these companies for a wide range of failures.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  Okay, thank

          7  you very much.

          8                 MR. OESTREICHER:  Thank you.

          9                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you

         10  Council Member Recchia.  Thank you very much Mr.

         11  Oestreicher and Mr. Altschuler and the rest of your

         12  team for joining us this morning.  Next, we'd like

         13  to call up a panel of parents and advocates.  We

         14  have actually three people, Diana Marinfeld,

         15  Migdalia Acevedo, and Pat Savor- McGuire.  Please

         16  join us at the witness table.  After this panel,

         17  we'll hear from Richard Ranieri, the Safety Director

         18  at Rimar Transportation.

         19                 Once again, this is a Joint Hearing

         20  of the City Council's Committees on Education and

         21  Transportation concerning the school buses

         22  transporting special needs children in our City.

         23  This Hearing commenced at 10:00 a.m.  We still have

         24  a number of people to testify.  We will have to

         25  limit the testimony to two minutes a person.  Given
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          2  that the testimony and the questioning by Council

          3  Members of the representatives of the Department of

          4  Education and the Department of Transportation was

          5  lengthy, another Hearing is scheduled to commence at

          6  1:00 p.m. Today, which is not very long from now.

          7                 So, at this point, let's proceed

          8  without any further delay.  Ms. Marinfeld.  It

          9  doesn't matter which of you would like to go first.

         10  I suppose Ms. Marinfeld, we have you going first on

         11  the schedule.  Press the button so the light is off.

         12                 MS. CATHEL (phonetic):  The light is

         13  on? Off, okay.  There's been a last minute

         14  substitution for Ms. Marinfeld. I'm Barbara Cathel.

         15  I'm also on the City- wide Council for Special

         16  Education and I am part of the busing task force

         17  that we've put together.

         18                 I would just like to say that we were

         19  in a unique position to really work very closely

         20  with OPT and this is for the, the non- pre- k, this

         21  is for like kindergarten through age 21, and they

         22  were extremely cooperative and they listed to us

         23  because we had polled a lot of parents and we,

         24  ourselves, are parents of special needs children.

         25  So, we have plenty of experience with the busing
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          2  problems.

          3                 I, myself, have an 18 year- old

          4  autistic son.  So, figure if he started into the

          5  system at age three, like I said, I've had an awful

          6  lot of experience.  What we've been trying to do is

          7  get the Office of Pupil Transportation to agree to

          8  certain service enhancements.  We are in the process

          9  with District 75, which serves the most severely

         10  disabled children, in modifying the escort and

         11  driver training, so that there's greater sensitivity

         12  on their part, there's greater information on their

         13  part, and they can deal with conflicts that might

         14  arise, both with parents and students riding the

         15  buses, as well as the schools.

         16                 We've made sure that reporting to the

         17  principals on the timeliness of the bus arrivals is

         18  made available.  We want a collaborative effort, so

         19  that parents, teachers, with students, the Office of

         20  Pupil Transportation, and the bus companies, we all

         21  work together for the safety of our children.  Now,

         22  how that will pan out, we're not really sure.  We

         23  only have a few more months in office, but we hope

         24  to continue that dialogue.

         25                 We've asked for customer service
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          2  improvements, no more hang ups, no more, you know, I

          3  don't know, good- bye kind of answers on the

          4  telephone.  We want notification when buses are late

          5  due to emergencies, due to traffic.  We've asked for

          6  GPS, and that's means --

          7                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Please wrap up.

          8                 MS. CATHEL:  -- I'm done.

          9                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Yes.

         10                 MS. CATHEL:  Okay.

         11                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you very

         12  much.

         13                 MS. CATHEL:  Sure.

         14                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Ms. Acevedo.

         15                 MS. ACEVEDO:  Hi.  Good afternoon.

         16  Thank you. I'm the former president for PA11M, of

         17  the PA Association there and VP for the City- wide

         18  President's Council on PA's and I've had an enormous

         19  amount of problems with busing in the past.  The

         20  most recent incident occurred on the 31st, where a

         21  newly assigned bus driver insulted me in the worst

         22  way possible, he called me a jerk and an idiot on

         23  the street, in front of my son, in front of the

         24  other children on the bus, in front of passerbys, in

         25  front of security personnel at my job and he did
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          2  this because I arrived downstairs one minute after

          3  he did.

          4                 He did not have a good history of

          5  prompt arrivals and when I filed a complaint, I was

          6  asked what did I do that made this man so angry,

          7  which clearly told me that, apparently, they believe

          8  there are situations where these bus drivers are

          9  justified in doing this.

         10                 I was told that they were doing an

         11  investigation and suspend him during the time that

         12  the investigation was taking place, and when I went

         13  back the following week to pick- up my son, the

         14  driver was there again.  When I called OPT to ask

         15  for alternative busing, they told me there was no

         16  complaint on file. There was no record of my

         17  complaint in the computer system, which obviously

         18  concerned me.  I e- mailed Richard Scarpa and asked

         19  him if he could provide me with the complaint number

         20  and the process by which they went about trying to

         21  collaborate the allegations, because they said they

         22  were unfounded.  But, the none of the people that

         23  were present were interviewed, so I'm not even sure

         24  what process they used.

         25                 So, I would ask this Council today to
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          2  please consider passing legislation that would

          3  require OPT to provide parents with some kind of a

          4  record of how the investigation was conducted, who

          5  did they speak to, certainly to open the process up

          6  to bidding.  I've encountered some good bus drivers,

          7  but I've had a lot of problems with them in the

          8  past, which tells me that there may be more bad ones

          9  than good ones.  And, you know, it's, it's just

         10  chronic, the problem is chronic and, unfortunately,

         11  there seems to be an internal culture of looking the

         12  other way. No matter how many times you complain,

         13  nothing ever gets done. Thank you.

         14                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you very

         15  much.  Ms. Savor- McGuire.

         16                 MS. SAVOR- MCGUIRE:  Hello.  My name

         17  is Pat Savor McGuire, and I represent the PTA of

         18  PS224Q, a sister school of 811.  I have a very

         19  specific question regarding the transportation

         20  guidelines and responsibilities of the Department of

         21  Education for children in special education that

         22  want to enroll in an after school program.

         23                 My research has indicated that the

         24  transportations available to special education only

         25  children are, has been privatized and must be
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          2  obtained through a grant writing program. I have

          3  specific documents that reflect the RFPs from the

          4  out of school time initiative under the Department

          5  of Youth and Community Development, and one of the

          6  questions and answers that is currently to view on

          7  the website specifically precludes transportation by

          8  either the Department of Education or the Department

          9  of Youth and Community Development for special

         10  education children that want to enroll in an after

         11  school program.

         12                 My school, in association with some

         13  of the other cluster schools, which is a multi-

         14  sided school, like 811M and 224Q, are in the process

         15  of trying to implement and formulate on site after

         16  school programs to address the needs and interests

         17  of our children.  We are unable to do so due to the

         18  current contractual guidelines regarding the

         19  transportation of the children home.

         20                 Now, I've learned today in this

         21  meeting that the contracts for busing our children

         22  are in a state of renewal.  We are asking this

         23  Council to look into whatever might need to be done

         24  to address any, any sort of amendment or provision

         25  that would entail us to be able to provide the
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          2  programs we would like for our children and get them

          3  home.

          4                 There are programs that are available

          5  for special education children in an after school

          6  setting, but they either do not provide

          7  transportation home, which severely curtails the

          8  ability of the student to participate due to family

          9  needs and issues, and the programs that do provide

         10  transportation are very few and far in between and,

         11  again, we cannot formulate a program with

         12  transportation that does not require a competitive

         13  grant. Even though I personally have enrolled in --

         14                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Please wrap up

         15                 MS. SAVOR- MCGUIRE:  -- The

         16  Foundation Center, it's a difficult process to

         17  navigate.  Thank you.

         18                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you very

         19  much.  Thank you for your patience today.  It takes

         20  us a while to get through, especially we have both

         21  the Education and Transportation Departments here.

         22  So, thank you very much for joining us.  Next. We'll

         23  hear from Richard Ranieri, the Safety Director at

         24  Rimar Transportation.  Mr. Ranieri, please proceed.

         25                 MR. PIKEN:  Good morning, my name's
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          2  Kenneth Piken, I'm counsel to Rimar Transportation

          3  Incorporated.  I've instructed Mr. Ranieri not to

          4  discuss any matters that are pending Administrative

          5  Hearings before the New York State Department of

          6  Transportation.

          7                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Please proceed.

          8                 MR. RANIERI:  Thank you.  My name is

          9  Rich Ranieri. I came here with no prepared

         10  statement, ready to answer questions the Council

         11  Members might have.

         12                 I can say this, I've been with the

         13  Marzo business for about 25 years, and I've worked

         14  for them in other enterprises that they've had.

         15  They recently have hired me as their Safety Director

         16  for obvious reasons to make it better and that's

         17  what we intend on doing.  I'm going to be handling

         18  the maintenance and service records, okay, for the

         19  whole company, and also the drivers' reports on both

         20  their companies.

         21                 As far as the fire goes, okay, on

         22  January 21st, we really don't have any explanation

         23  as to what caused the fire.  I know that the van did

         24  not burst into flames.  The van was pulled over and

         25  the children were taken off safely, which is always
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          2  our concern at Rimar Transportation.  I really do

          3  understand the concerns of the parents, as I would

          4  have concerns having had children of my own, to

          5  continue to transport them.  I can only say that we

          6  are doing everything we can to make it better and

          7  it's going to happen, it's going to happen.

          8                 Our service record since January to

          9  now, since I've been hired for Rimar, has gone up

         10  from the 45 percent to 78 and a half percent as of

         11  last week, and, you know, I, that's not even good

         12  enough for myself, but we're going to make it better

         13  than that, and I can assure you that, you know, I'm,

         14  I'd like to have an open -- I don't know if I'm

         15  going to be hurting myself here, I'd like to have an

         16  open line of communication with the parents and

         17  assure them that they can call me direct if they

         18  have any safety concerns about the vehicles and any

         19  issues with the drivers or the matrons.  Thank you

         20  very much.

         21                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  When you talk

         22  about the 45 to 78 percent, what exactly are you

         23  talking about?

         24                 MR. RANIERI:  The pass ratio for the

         25  DOT inspections.
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          2                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So, prior to

          3  this year, prior to the accident, it was 45 percent?

          4                 MR. RANIERI:  Yea, prior to the

          5  accident, as reported, yes, it was 45 percent.  I

          6  can say --

          7                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  45 percent of

          8  your vehicles passed what inspection?

          9                 MR. RANIERI:  State DOT safety

         10  inspections.

         11                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So, what about

         12  the ones that failed inspection?  Were they put on

         13  the road?

         14                 MR. RANIERI:  No, at no time they,

         15  the --

         16                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Doesn't it just

         17  make sense for your company to, just out of business

         18  practicality, to fix them so that you can put them

         19  on the road?

         20                 MR. RANIERI:  At no time do any of

         21  the vans go out, okay, without being inspected by

         22  the DOT 100 percent.  100 percent of our vans --

         23                 MR. PIKEN:  If I may, Chairman, when

         24  the vehicle's inspected by State DOT and it's taken

         25  out of because it did not pass, that could be a tail
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          2  light or it could be a break, it could be anything.

          3  The vehicles are repaired on the spot.  Not one

          4  vehicle ever leaves any bus company, let alone Rimar

          5  Transportation and namely 100 percent of their

          6  vehicles have passed New York State inspection

          7  before they're put on the road.

          8                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Well, since you

          9  seem to know about other companies as well, do you

         10  think that 45 percent is relatively good or

         11  relatively bad compared to other companies?

         12                 MR. PIKEN:  I think it's very bad.

         13  But, nonetheless, the repairs are done on the spot

         14  and usually done within two hours.  Another company

         15  was mentioned here who also happens to be a client

         16  of mine.

         17                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Mr. Ranieri,

         18  you testified that you're going to try to make it

         19  better, I think --

         20                 MR. RANIERI:  No, I'm not going to

         21  try, I'm going to make it better.

         22                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Well, I think

         23  we have years of complaints about Rimar already, and

         24  I think if there are lots of people here who will

         25  speak to that.  What kind, what are you going to do
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          2  to make it better apart from just telling us that?

          3                 MR. RANIERI:  Well, as Councilman

          4  McMahon had mentioned before about the, us hiring,

          5  there being an article about us having a driver that

          6  was a convicted felon.  At no time, okay, there are

          7  two types of 19A certifications, unfortunately,

          8  alright? One is school bus certified, one is non-

          9  school bus. Both allowed to drive their appropriate

         10  vehicles.

         11                 What I've done now, and

         12  unfortunately, we have no way of knowing why they're

         13  not non- school bus certified.  So, what I've done

         14  now for both companies is to make sure that

         15  everybody is, can at least be school bus certified,

         16  alright? This way, there is, there is never going to

         17  be a problem with having the possibility of a

         18  convicted felon driving on our bus. The system

         19  failed us, the DMV 19A system failed us on that one.

         20  So, we're just going to make it, make every driver

         21  have to be school bus certified in order to drive

         22  any vehicle.

         23                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you very

         24  much. Questions from Council Member McMahon.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Thank you
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          2  Mr. Chairman. Good morning, good afternoon Mr.

          3  Ranieri and counsel.  You said that you were going

          4  to make things better because of the obvious need to

          5  do so.  What do you mean by that?

          6                 MR. RANIERI:  We've gotten some bad

          7  publicity.  We did have a fire and I understand

          8  that, the parents' concerns about allowing these

          9  children to go on our school buses.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  You're a

         11  parent yourself you said, right?

         12                 MR. RANIERI:   Yes.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  And would

         14  you feel happy about entrusting your child to a

         15  company that says that we've had problems and we're

         16  going to try to make it better?

         17                 MR. RANIERI:  I would have my

         18  concerns, as I would with anybody handling my

         19  children, but I can assure you --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Especially

         21  when somebody, I mean, when somebody says, and, you

         22  know what? I really credit you for your candor and

         23  for your honesty, but it's a concern because you're

         24  saying that there are problems and you're going to

         25  try to fix them.  But, what happens between the time
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          2  of now and when you fix them, if you're able to,

          3  what do we tell the parents of the children who are

          4  here that they've got to put their child on a bus

          5  that --

          6                 MR. PIKEN:  Council Member, I think

          7   --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  -- Has

          9  problems that have to be fixed?

         10                 MR. PIKEN:  --  We're not

         11  paraphrasing, I think taking a pass rate of initial

         12  inspections from 45 percent to 78 percent and 100

         13  percent of all vehicles passed inspections that are

         14  put on the road is a remarkable task that Mr.

         15  Ranieri has accomplished in a very few short months.

         16    Don't you?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  I don't know

         18  if I, I credit him, again, for his candor, but I

         19  don't know if I'm going to credit a company for

         20  doing something that they should have done to begin

         21  with, especially when they're, they're dealing with

         22  our most, you know, our most fragile children, the

         23  ones, and parents who are legitimately concerned.

         24                 I'm not going to concede that is

         25  remarkable or wonderful.  I mean, so what, they
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          2  should have been, they should not have a City

          3  contract unless all their buses meet DOT standards.

          4  You know, counsel, you say that no bus leaves a

          5  station without State certification.  Are you there

          6  checking every bus?  How do you know?

          7                 MR. PIKEN:  Well, apparently, my

          8  credibility as far as what I know State procedures

          9  is and the 19A examination process for drivers is

         10  substantially better than letters to the media and

         11  newspaper articles making false accusations about my

         12  client.  My client is not guilty of 90 percent --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Are you

         14  there?

         15                 MR. PIKEN:  -- Of what's been stated

         16  here this morning.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Well, how do

         18  you know, you weren't there?

         19                 MR. PIKEN:  I've done my own

         20  investigation.  I've been in touch with New York

         21  State officials as well, who have also chosen not to

         22  be here this morning, although invited.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  The other

         24  client --

         25                 MR. PIKEN:  I do not understand why
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          2  New York State DOT is not here, even though they've

          3  been asked to attend.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  You can ask

          5  them that, but --

          6                 MR. PIKEN:  I did ask them that.

          7  Have you asked them that Councilman?

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  We just

          9  found out that they're not coming.  We will find

         10  out.

         11                 MR. PIKEN:  I found out before today.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  The other

         13  client --

         14                 MR. PIKEN:  My resources are better

         15  than this Council? That's remarkable.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  The other

         17  client that you mentioned -- we have no jurisdiction

         18  over State DOT, you know that counselor --

         19                 MR. PIKEN:  I --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  The other

         21  client that you mentioned, is that Pinnacle?

         22                 MR. PIKEN:  I'm not permitted to

         23  discuss any other of my clients, there was more than

         24  one company mentioned today besides this particular

         25  company.

                                                            188

          1  EDUCATION AND TRANSPORTATION

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  And you know

          3   --

          4                 MR. PIKEN:  I'm not on the hot seat

          5  Councilman.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Well, you're

          7  putting yourself counselor, because you're making

          8  assertions and statements as fact.  Were you there

          9  on January 21st when there was a fire on the bus?

         10  Do you know what happened?

         11                 MR. PIKEN:  I did not make a single

         12  statement about the fire.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Do you know

         14  if that bus was certified?  Do you know --

         15                 MR. PIKEN:  I did not make a single

         16  statement --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  -- Whether

         18  or not parts were switched?

         19                 MR. PIKEN:  -- About certification of

         20  that bus on that day.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  You said

         22  that every single bus leaves and you know what

         23  happens because you're well versed in the procedures

         24  of this industry.

         25                 MR. PIKEN:  I'm well versed in the
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          2  procedures of the industry, and I know that

          3  according to the State regulations, all regulations

          4  have been met, as opposed to newspaper articles from

          5  constituents in an election year Councilman.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Were you

          7  there when an employee of Rimar engaged in road rage

          8  against a mother on Staten Island?

          9                 MR. PIKEN:  I have no knowledge of

         10  that incident whatsoever and I'd like to see it as

         11  their counsel.

         12                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So, you are

         13  actually, yea, I mean, Mr. Ranieri is here speaking

         14  sincerely about the efforts to make things better

         15  and you're just totally destroying it for your

         16  client --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  You blew it,

         18  man.

         19                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  -- So, I mean,

         20  if I were you, I would just try to say as little as

         21  possible, but that's just me --

         22                 MR. PIKEN:  When Councilman McMahon

         23  makes false accusations against my client, it's my

         24  obligation as an attorney at law --

         25                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  I have not
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          2  heard --

          3                 MR. PIKEN:  -- To defend them.

          4                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  -- A single

          5  accusation from Council Member McMahon.  So, why

          6  don't you let him speak, and when you are asked to

          7  speak, when you are asked to testify --

          8                 MR. PIKEN:  Yes, Mr. Chairman

          9                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  -- Then you

         10  will do so.

         11                 MR. PIKEN:  Yes, Mr. Chairman.

         12                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Council Member

         13  McMahon.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Thank you

         15  Mr. Chairman. Mr. Ranieri, do you have a system in

         16  place where parents can call up your two companies

         17  to make requests, to find out scheduling of the

         18  buses, to get information?

         19                 MR. RANIERI:  No, I don't.  I would

         20  like to offer our phone number and --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Sure, what

         22  is it?

         23                 MR. RANIERI:  I guess I'm going to be

         24  working overtime.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  What's your
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          2  phone number?

          3                 MR. RANIERI:  Okay, it's 718- 477-

          4  5678.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  And that's

          6  your office phone number?

          7                 MR. RANIERI:  That's correct.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  And how

          9  about your cell or Nextel, so the parents --

         10                 MR. RANIERI:  Oh, my cell phone.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  -- Can reach

         12  you.

         13                 MR. RANIERI:  Okay.  You want me to

         14  give out my cell phone?

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Sure.

         16  Because you're saying you want us to believe that

         17  your, with your personal credibility, is going to

         18  make a difference here.  So, I think the parents

         19  should be able to reach you if they have a question.

         20                 MR. RANIERI:  Okay, Councilman, if

         21  it's okay with you.  I will call you tomorrow or

         22  I'll get in touch with whatever --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Sure, you

         24  can call my office and Ms. Kennedy's --

         25                 MR. RANIERI:  -- With the appropriate
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          2  phone numbers, if that's okay?

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  That would

          4  be fine, but-

          5                 MR. RANIERI:  And we're going to

          6  handle this.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  But, are you

          8  saying that you're going to open an on- going

          9  constant line of communication, so that parents have

         10  concerns, questions, status questions that they can

         11  reach you personally?

         12                 MR. RANIERI:  That's correct.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  What other

         14  steps will you be taking to fix the problems, as you

         15  said?

         16                 MR. RANIERI:  Well, we've beefed up

         17  our mechanic staff.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  What does

         19  that mean?

         20                 MR. RANIERI:  We've hired more

         21  mechanics --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  How many?

         23                 MR. RANIERI:  -- To make sure, four

         24  more mechanics.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  How many do
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          2  you have all together?

          3                 MR. RANIERI:  Right now, we're, full-

          4  time mechanics, about nine mechanics.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  How many

          6  buses fulfilling City contracts to transport

          7  children?

          8                 MR. RANIERI:  City contracts? About

          9  35 buses right now.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  And how many

         11  mechanics total?

         12                 MR. RANIERI:  For that portion of the

         13  City contract, I would say half the mechanics are

         14  used for that, it's about 50/50.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  And the

         16  total again was?

         17                 MR. RANIERI:  It's was about 35.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  I'm sorry,

         19  mechanics.

         20                 MR. RANIERI:  Mechanics?  About eight

         21  or nine.  We have eight or nine mechanics, because

         22  we have some guys checking the vehicles, checking

         23  the fluids, but full- time mechanics, about eight or

         24  nine.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Are the
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          2  buses inspected every day?  How's that work?

          3                 MR. RANIERI:  Alright.  The way the

          4  inspections go is they're checked when they come in

          5  at night, alright? And the driver, first thing in

          6  the morning, does a driver sheet and is supposed to

          7  go over the physical appearance of the van, make the

          8  sure the lights, the signs are working, the signal

          9  lights, stop lights, make sure it's in good working

         10  order.

         11                 Then, at that point, he would go to

         12  the mechanic and say, you know, my light bulbs out,

         13  my signal light is out and we would repair it on the

         14  spot.  If it wasn't repairable on the spot, we would

         15  hold that bus back and issue the driver a spare bus.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  How about

         17  cleaning?  Are the buses cleaned every day?

         18                 MR. RANIERI:  Well, that's a problem

         19  we've been having.  Are they cleaned every day?

         20  Unfortunately, where they took space, they haven't

         21  opened it up, right across the street, right across

         22  the street is a land, not a landfill, um, dirt, yea,

         23  transfer station --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Transfer

         25  station.
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          2                 MR. RANIERI:  -- And it's getting a

          3  little difficult to, which is something that I'm

          4  looking into with the Marzos to get the buses into

          5  another location, at the very least, because it's,

          6  it's getting impossible to keep the buses clean, the

          7  exterior, okay, on Spencer Street.  Okay, but we're

          8  going to work on that too.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Well, again,

         10  I appreciate your sincerity and your candor Mr.

         11  Ranieri, but I, hearing your testimony and hearing

         12  the problems that exist and knowing things that

         13  happened, alleged and factual, I have very, very

         14  deep concerns and I understand why the parents are

         15  very, very upset. I urge you to move most

         16  expeditiously to solve these problems to the best of

         17  your ability and we're going hold you to the things

         18  that you said here today.

         19                 MR. RANIERI:  Councilman, I'd just

         20  like to, on one allegation, clear something up that

         21  is really, you know, other than the fire, should be

         22  a concern of parents at no time did a convicted

         23  felon ever drive a school bus for Rimar

         24  Transportation.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Yes, no, I

                                                            196

          1  EDUCATION AND TRANSPORTATION

          2  said in my statement --

          3                 MR. RANIERI:  Okay.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  -- That is

          5  was an adult senior bus.  There's no question.

          6                 MR. RANIERI:  Okay, thank you.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  But, you're

          8  right, you say it and people assume things.  I'm not

          9  alleging that and I understand a lot of the things,

         10  and -- but there are, there are factual problems,

         11  you agree with that, right?  There were things that

         12  were happening, you said there were problems.  There

         13  are also allegations that swirl around.  When you

         14  add the two together, when you're a parent --

         15                 MR. RANIERI:  Concern.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  -- With a

         17  three year- old with special needs, you don't want

         18  to know, you don't want to hear about what's an

         19  allegation and what's not, you know, there are

         20  problems.  You said it, and your company owes it to

         21  these children to resolve those problems immediately

         22  and to keep that line of communication open and we

         23  will continue to press the Department of

         24  Transportation to fulfill its role of supervising

         25  you and other stuff that I've outlined previously.
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          2  Thank you. Thank you Mr. Chairman.

          3                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you

          4  Council Member McMahon and thank you Mr. Ranieri --

          5                 MR. RANIERI:  Thank you.

          6                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  -- And your

          7  associate for joining us here today.  We look

          8  forward to hearing more from you and certainly we

          9  hope that the parents' concerns will be addressed

         10  directly and promptly.

         11                 We have two panels and we need to be

         12  out of here five minutes ago to make way for the

         13  Health Committee.  Let me call Laura Kennedy, Anne

         14  Marie McDonough, Rena Davis and Dianne Bradford.

         15  Please join us at the witness table.  Immediately

         16  after this panel of four, will be another panel

         17  consisting of Dovota Bielen, Lorraine Emerson-

         18  Boykin, Sandra Ayala and Joan Goodman.

         19                 I want to thank you for joining us

         20  this morning and this afternoon and for being so

         21  patient and finally for adhering to a two minute

         22  time limit for your testimony.  Ms. Kennedy.

         23                 MS. KENNEDY:  Good afternoon and I

         24  applaud your efforts and I applaud the homework that

         25  you have apparently done in addressing this issue.
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          2  Again, my name is Laura Kennedy.  I'm the Director

          3  of the Early Childhood Directions Center on Staten

          4  Island, which is an information and referral service

          5  for families of children with special needs between

          6  the ages of birth and five of age.

          7                 In that capacity, I chair a group of

          8  special education pre- school providers, who

          9  regularly meet to discuss relevant issues.  I am

         10  here this morning to voice their concerns and the

         11  dozens of parents that I have come in contact with

         12  their complaints about the quality and effectiveness

         13  of the New York City DOT in providing appropriate

         14  oversight of pre- k services.

         15                 I'll be as quickly as I can.  You

         16  covered most of the concerns that we have addressed.

         17    But, this --

         18                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Although we do

         19  have your written testimony.

         20                 MS. KENNEDY:  Good.  These including

         21  the awarding of contracts, monitoring of complaints

         22  of families and professionals, and working

         23  effectively with the State DOT to ensure that safety

         24  inspections are routinely shared with them.  I want

         25  to thank both you, John Liu and Eva Moskowitz, who
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          2  was not feeling well today, that initiated this

          3  Hearing and really doing a good job with getting the

          4  right facts.

          5                 When was the last time you rode in a

          6  City bus or your own car that went on fire?  And,

          7  when you think about this, it's just amazing.  This

          8  year, as you know, three weeks apart, two buses go

          9  on fire.  I'd like to outline what our concerns are

         10  on Staten Island regarding pre- k transportation,

         11  and the best way for me to do that is, as you know,

         12  using Rimar, the bus company that services most of

         13  the pre- school programs on Staten Island, which is

         14  very unique.  Within the boroughs, we have various

         15  contractors.  But, on Staten Island, we particularly

         16  have Rimar doing most of them.

         17                 They're owned and operated by Richard

         18  and Joseph Marzo.  They are also operators of a

         19  sister company as we mentioned, named Ozram, and

         20  that company transports adults with developmental

         21  disabilities and Rimar's one of the companies that

         22  recently had the fire.

         23                 Two years ago, in April, we contacted

         24  Iris Weinshall, and we went through a series of

         25  correspondences with DOT.  We met with them with
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          2  good diligence to work out problems. I want you to

          3  know that in spite of all of the incidences, which I

          4  have prepared a document for you, which highlights

          5  all of those correspondences that we have had with

          6  everyone, City and State, and all of the news

          7  clippings, will show that we just don't know where

          8  to go anymore.  So, I will end and you can read the

          9  rest.

         10                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you and

         11  this Committee would be most interested in having

         12  all of the, all of your concerns forwarded to us.  I

         13  know you gave us a very comprehensive package, which

         14  will be very helpful.  But, if more material becomes

         15  available, please don't hesitate to forward that to

         16  our Committees.

         17                 MS. KENNEDY:  Thank you.

         18                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.  Ms.

         19  McDonough.

         20                 MS. MCDONOUGH:  Good afternoon

         21  Councilman.  I will cut my remarks down to less than

         22  one minute because you touched of most of the topics

         23  early this morning.  I am a concerned parent of a

         24  three year- old, who rides on a Rimar Transportation

         25  bus, and one of the things I submitted with my
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          2  testimony is a couple of pictures from the Staten

          3  Island Advance that were published on January 22nd

          4  from this bus fire.  My daughter started riding the

          5  bus about three days prior to this incident. So, as

          6  you can imagine, I'm very concerned about it.

          7                 What concerned me most and the

          8  comments on my testimony, which you have in there,

          9  is really the lack of oversight and I think you made

         10  that very clear in your questioning this morning.

         11  There seems to be no oversight.  There seems to be

         12  no financial sanctions.  There seems to be no

         13  criminal or civil penalties against these companies.

         14    I think that the conclusion of this Committee if

         15  that can come down, that there is oversight, that

         16  there are sanctions, and that vehicle performance is

         17  really enforced, I think that would be an accolade

         18  to this Committee and that's what I would love to

         19  see happen. Thank you.  I'd also like to thank Mike

         20  McMahon, our Councilman, for setting this up.

         21                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you Ms.

         22  McDonough for being to the point, and the point is

         23  well taken.  Ms. Davis.

         24                 MS. DAVIS:  Good morning.  I'm

         25  speaking to you today from two very different
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          2  perspectives.  I'm the mother of a nine year- old

          3  boy, who now attends a general education third

          4  grade.  At the age of three, he attended a CPSE pre-

          5  school and was transported to and from school on a

          6  small yellow school bus. I never questioned the

          7  safety of my child while on the bus ride, nor the

          8  honesty of the bus company providing the service.  I

          9  remember the cool air that come from the bus on the

         10  hot summer days.  I remember they called me one day

         11  as they were leaving school, so I wouldn't worry if

         12  they were late.  It had just started to snow and

         13  they were going to be taking it slow.

         14                 The courtesy exhibited did not stop

         15  there. Throughout my son's time and at CPSE pre-

         16  school, the bus company proved itself time and time

         17  again to be courteous, professional, and most of

         18  all, they understood the importance of the

         19  children's safety.

         20                 I'm now a therapist working in the

         21  CPSE pre- school that my child attended.  There's a

         22  new bus company entrusted with the transporting the

         23  children to school and things have changed. The

         24  buses that arrive at the school appear old.  They

         25  frequently break down and have mechanical
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          2  difficulties.  Children consistently miss both

          3  therapy times, as well as classroom instruction, due

          4  to late bus arrivals.  These are services that these

          5  children need desperately and are entitled to

          6  receive.

          7                 A large part of our days at work

          8  often involve notifying parents that their children

          9  will arrive home late because a bus is broken down

         10  or has too few child safety seats and is awaiting

         11  the arrival of more.  This makes no sense.  The same

         12  children require a safety seat to school, as well as

         13  home from school.

         14                 Many of our parents have complained

         15  to the DOT, but feel their concerns have fallen on

         16  deaf ears.  Several parents have pulled their

         17  children from the bus and are now driving them to

         18  school.  These children are entitled to bus

         19  services, are being driven in only because their

         20  parents are scared.  They've lost faith and trust in

         21  the bus company.

         22                 Last spring, my youngest child was

         23  evaluated by CPSE.  I was so thankful that he did

         24  not need a program and instead only receives related

         25  services.  Knowing what I know of the bus services
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          2  provided to the CPSE children in my borough, I would

          3  never send him on the bus and would have had to

          4  arrange to drive him to and from school.  That,

          5  along with transporting my other children to school

          6  and holding down a full- time job would have been

          7  difficult and frustrating, and it should not have to

          8  be that way.  Pre- school special education children

          9  are entitled to bus services that should include

         10  safe and reliable transport to and from school.

         11                 It is incomprehensible how these bus

         12  companies are allowed to continue transporting these

         13  youngest and most innocent of our society.  I've

         14  never worked for anyone that would allow the

         15  frequency of mistakes and problems that these bus

         16  companies are allowed.  I would have been fired long

         17  before there was a laundry list of complaints logged

         18  against me.  These are children, young, dependent,

         19  special education children.  They rely on adults to

         20  keep them safe.  I wonder how soundly they sleep at

         21  night, knowing these innocent babies' lives are

         22  literally in their hands.  They're our future and

         23  they deserve better.

         24                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.  We

         25  certainly would agree.  Ms. Bradford.
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          2                 MS. BRADFORD:  Again, I want to echo

          3  my thanks to the Joint Committees for this very

          4  important Hearing.  It's extremely validating for

          5  those of us who have been struggling with this, and

          6  particularly the parents who are here today.

          7                 I'm the Program Coordinator of an

          8  early intervention center and special ed. Pre-

          9  school in the Bronx. Because you have such a good

         10  understanding of all the issues and they've been

         11  documented so much, I want to just raise one other

         12  issue that we've experienced since January.  We had

         13  a new low bidder contract set up to take over our

         14  transportation in January.  That company. Now, in

         15  April, is still not ready.  We're being told they

         16  won't be ready until July.  And, one thing that the

         17  Department of Transportation does is they give a

         18  where and when provider as a temporary provider.

         19                 What I would like to do is just raise

         20  the questions that I have, addressing this issue and

         21  the general things at the end of my testimony.

         22                 The questions that we would like to

         23  see investigated are how can DOT allow a bus company

         24  to win and keep a contract to provide services when

         25  they are not ready to provide the service for over
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          2  six months?  Besides the issue of low cost, just

          3  what are the requirements and expectations that a

          4  bus company must meet to win a contract to transport

          5  special needs children?  What about the where and

          6  when contractors?

          7                 Does it include the training of

          8  drivers and matrons to include any basic familiarity

          9  with the needs of special needs children or any

         10  children for that matter?  That's something that we

         11  have found to be seriously lacking.  Does it include

         12  a basic knowledge and observance of safety

         13  standards, like not letting children stand in the

         14  aisles of moving buses, not speeding with children

         15  on the bus, placing children in car seats, which

         16  frequently does not happen, not letting children eat

         17  on the bus and risk choking, and in the case of an

         18  accident, waiting for EMS to give medical clearance

         19  of the children before they take them home, which

         20  was not done.  Is there a basic level of courtesy

         21  and appropriate interaction with families, children

         22  and service providers that is expected of bus

         23  companies who contract with the DOT?

         24                 What we're really asking today is

         25  that you listen to the voices of the thousands of
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          2  little people all over New York City who have no

          3  voice of their own to protest the inappropriate and

          4  inexperienced handling of poorly trained, poorly

          5  paid staff. We feel that caring for special needs

          6  children is a sacred trust and we urge the Council

          7  to press DOT to take that trust seriously and to

          8  take, to make their contractors do the same.  We're

          9  hoping that there won't have to be a tragedy before

         10  this really, issue is forced.  Thank you.

         11                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Well, it's

         12  clear from the testimony, from the DOT, that they

         13  don't, they're not really enthusiastic about their

         14  responsibilities for providing this bus

         15  transportation, and while we're not totally

         16  enthusiastic about the Department of Education's

         17  ability to provide that service, it just makes that

         18  it all be under one roof.  So, we would certainly

         19  agree with all of your recommendations and try to

         20  address as many of the concerns as possible.

         21                 MS. BRADFORD:  May I just ask whether

         22  people who didn't get a chance to testify can submit

         23  the information that they brought?  We have several

         24  parents who I would love to have-

         25                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Absolutely.
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          2  For those of you who are here for the first time, I

          3  apologize if you were not aware that all witnesses

          4  do have to fill out one of these slips. But, we are

          5  out of time.  We have four more people to hear from.

          6  If you did come to speak on this issue and did not

          7  get a chance to fill one of these out, we would

          8  certainly accept your written testimony, as we have

          9  for all of these four people here.  Thank you very

         10  much for joining us today.  Now, our final panel,

         11  Ms. Bielen, Ms. Emerson- Boykin, Ms. Ayala and Ms.

         12  Goodman.  Ms. Bielen, please proceed.

         13                 MS. BIELEN:  My name is Dovota Bielen

         14  and I am a parent at Astoria Blue Feather Head

         15  Start.  My concerns are the school buses every day

         16  late, every other day from 30 minutes to hour and a

         17  half, that's like a routine.  The matron sleeping on

         18  the bus, which I seen many times.  She's laying down

         19  through the seats in the back of the school bus.

         20  Also, the matron is, doesn't have a training in

         21  health, like asthma.  My son has asthma, she was

         22  spraying Lysol all over the bus.  When I picked up

         23  my son, my son had bad asthma attack, which she

         24  didn't discover.  I ask her, do you see what you're

         25  doing to my son? She said, there's nothing wrong
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          2  with him.  There's no training whatsoever.

          3                 Another thing, when I called the

          4  Department of Transportation to complain, Ms.

          5  Frasier never give me complaint number.  That means,

          6  the file, my complaint's never been filed in a

          7  system.  It's my first experience with a school bus

          8  company and it's a very bad one.  Like they said, a

          9  lot of chiefs, but no Indians, and one hand washing

         10  the other.  That is the perfect way to describe the

         11  bus company and Department of Transportation. How

         12  long we parents and the children have to suffer?

         13                 And, another thing, I have on

         14  answering machine, conversation between bus driver

         15  and dispatch.  I called right before that, that my

         16  son will not be picked up on that day.  The bus

         17  driver stopped and conversation with my, I'm going

         18  to repeat exactly how it was said.  I'm tired of

         19  this shit.  I'm not doing this shit anymore.

         20  Because my son was not downstairs.  I don't thing

         21  that is appropriate talking in front of the children

         22  on the bus.  Thank you.

         23                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you very

         24  much.  Next, we'll hear from Ms. Emerson- Boykin.

         25                 MS. EMERSON- BOYKIN:  Good morning

                                                            210

          1  EDUCATION AND TRANSPORTATION

          2  Council --

          3                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Good morning.

          4                 MS. EMERSON- BOYKIN:  I am the parent

          5  of -- I spoke with Mr. Jackson in the back.  My son

          6  is three and a half years old.  He attends Tots in

          7  the Bronx.  We use Pinnacle.  They're our provided

          8  bus services.  My son, on April 5th, pedestrians,

          9  two pedestrians asked my eldest son for me to come

         10  downstairs and I did.  They told me that my bus

         11  driver was speeding with my son on the grand

         12  concourse, which is known to have many accidents on

         13  the concourse.  It's an actual main strip, and I

         14  came downstairs, they gave me their name.  The

         15  school crossing guard gave me a complaint number.  I

         16  immediately called.  Ms. Frasier did get back in

         17  touch with me.

         18                 I visited the school the next day.  I

         19  spoke with the bus driver and the matron.  The

         20  matron informed me that the bus driver received two

         21  speeding tickets in one day.  My son's session is

         22  9:00.  My son's pick- up and drop- off is 12:00.

         23  So, that means he received two tickets within nine

         24  to 12, which I was really disturbed by.

         25                 That following week, I took a leave
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          2  from my job. I'm a New York City Correction Officer.

          3    I went to see what was actually going on with the

          4  bus company in putting my son on the bus, taking my

          5  son off.  I ran into an ex- inmate who was a bus

          6  driver.  Immediately he told every driver who I was.

          7    They were very scared.  I asked the bus driver did

          8  he receive tickets.  He was very honest.  He told me

          9  he did.  I called Pinnacle Bus Company immediately

         10  and told them my son will not be on that bus the

         11  next day.

         12                 The owner of the bus company never

         13  got back in touch with me.  Everything was done

         14  through his administrator, Ms. Garcia.  Ms. Garcia

         15  told me that they had a meeting before that day was

         16  out and that he did bring in the two tickets.  She

         17  was overwhelmed.  She caught me at my home at 6:30.

         18  She said they were suspended.  The next day, I took

         19  off work, I went, he was not suspended.  He has a

         20  different route and he's a driver at another school.

         21    I work in a harsh setting where I need to know

         22  that I my safety is okay and to know in the morning

         23  when I'm putting my son in the hands of a driver

         24  with two speeding tickets, I, the bus driver, no one

         25  got back to me, no one said anything about it.  I
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          2  don't just speak for my son, I speak for all special

          3  education children and also the drivers.  These

          4  drivers are not trained.  I looked at what they were

          5  wearing, pants off their hip, women wearing

          6  provocative clothes looking like a club setting, the

          7  matron --

          8                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Please wrap up.

          9                 MS. EMERSON- BOYKIN:  Okay.  The

         10  matron, she was nodding.  My concern is the safety

         11  for my son and all the children that are special

         12  needs.  These requirements, I listen to these

         13  policies, contract, bids.  These companies, they

         14  pacify us, DOT has pacified us and something needs

         15  to be done immediately. None of these things are

         16  enforced.  So, I'm looking for enforcement.  I'm

         17  looking for an investigation team maybe that can

         18  come about, random drug testing and the safety of

         19  our children.  Thank you.

         20                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.  Ms.

         21  Ayala.

         22                 MS. AYALA:  My name is Sandra Ayala.

         23  I'm the registered nurse at Volunteers of America

         24  Parkchester Early Learning Center and we are also

         25  serviced by Pinnacle.
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          2                 When I took the job at Volunteers of

          3  America, I knew it was a difficult task, only

          4  because I was replacing beloved nurse of 12 years

          5  who died suddenly.  So, I saw this as an opportunity

          6  and as a challenge.  It was the first time caring

          7  for children two to four years, with a variety of

          8  special needs. I believed that one of my biggest

          9  challenges was taking the temperature of an autistic

         10  child who refused to be touched, but it wasn't.  It

         11  was, surprisingly, that of their bus service.

         12                 I also wondered why didn't somebody

         13  take on this challenge before, but as days went by,

         14  it was clear, although I thought I was going to save

         15  the world, it didn't happen that way, it was not

         16  that easy.  I first e- mailed the Commissioner's

         17  office and we were promptly contacted by the person

         18  in charge of our school at the Department of

         19  Transportation.  We began to meet with the bus

         20  companies to come to an understanding.  This meeting

         21  led to others, but problems still continued; late

         22  buses, frequent break downs, long travel times,

         23  lying to the parents, among other things.

         24                 I honestly believe that having

         25  employees who are not properly trained is a huge
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          2  factor.  In our own case, I believe that the issue

          3  lies in the owner or owners of the bus company.

          4  What they see is an amount of money.  The more

          5  children, the more money.  They do not take into

          6  consideration the lives that they impact on a daily

          7  basis.  This service is mandated for these children.

          8    They are entitled to them.  They're entitled,

          9  according to the Department of Health, to a healthy,

         10  safe and comfortable ride to school, which should

         11  last no more than one hour.  At my school, this

         12  health code is violated every single day.  This is

         13  the reason why I am here today to speak for the

         14  children that we service who cannot verbalize and

         15  say when they are uncomfortable.

         16                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you Ms.

         17  Ayala, and thank you for your commitment to these

         18  children.  Next, we'll hear from Ms. Goodman.

         19                 MS. GOODMAN:  Hi.  I'm a parent of a

         20  ten year- old child who attends Learning Spring

         21  Elementary School and I'm here because I just want

         22  to give you some portraits of incidents that have

         23  happened directly to us.  If a child is attending a

         24  special education program, he or she is already in a

         25  fragile place, physically, socially and/or
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          2  emotionally.  A safe, comfortable, reasonably short

          3  bus ride to and from school in the care of a capable

          4  matron and bus driver is not an unreasonable

          5  expectation. Too often, the reality of special

          6  transportation falls far short of this.

          7                 When my son, Henry, attended a pre-

          8  school program, I was assisting the teacher on a

          9  neighborhood field trip when we discovered a

         10  sleeping child who had been left behind on the bus

         11  parked in front of the school.  Fortunately, we made

         12  this discovery before the child could come to any

         13  harm.

         14                 When Henry was five, attending a

         15  program just one mile from our home, he was put on a

         16  bus route that served three separate schools.

         17  Because of this, his bus ride was nearly an hour to

         18  and from school.  When Henry was six, his bus also

         19  served teenagers who attended a different program in

         20  another school. Some of these teens, and one was 20

         21  years- old, had behavior problems.  Once the matron

         22  was attacked.  The driver had to stop the bus and go

         23  to her aid.

         24                 On another occasion, Henry's six

         25  year- old classmate was punched in the face.  The
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          2  DOT, the Board of Ed. Remained completely

          3  unresponsive to phone calls and letters. Eventually,

          4  we had to hire a lawyer to intervene.

          5                 I have helped teachers organize field

          6  trips.  We have followed the protocol of reserving a

          7  bus and getting a confirmation weeks ahead of

          8  schedule, and on more than one occasion, the bus

          9  simply doesn't show up.  Children who are mandated

         10  for air conditioning on the buses are not getting

         11  it. They come to school dripping with sweat.  These

         12  are kids who are prone to seizures.  This is clearly

         13  a health hazard.

         14                 In my child's, at my child's school,

         15  children are released off the bus right onto the

         16  street.  This is clearly a dangerous situation and

         17  the Board of Ed. Is unresponsive to calls and

         18  information from the school on these kids' behalf.

         19  Now, in the past two years, we have had excellent

         20  matrons and drivers and I'm very grateful.  But, I

         21  realize that this is not something I can depend on,

         22  that reliable and conscientious bus staff might not

         23  always be there.  Sometimes simple ignorance of the

         24  issues facing my child and his schoolmates has

         25  created a miserable situation for my son and myself.
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          2                 Our school has offered training for

          3  bus staff that has consistently been rebuffed.  My

          4  child's disabilities are more than enough for him to

          5  contend with -- excuse me.  At the very least, the

          6  bus ride to and from school should not add to his

          7  burden.  Thank you very much for having us.

          8                 CO- CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.  I

          9  really want to, on behalf of my colleagues and the

         10  Council thank the parents for taking their time out.

         11    It has been a very long Hearing today, and we

         12  always need to take more time with the

         13  Administration, just because we question them on

         14  exactly what they're doing and it's clear that

         15  they're not doing enough here in terms of

         16  transporting our special needs kids to and from

         17  school.

         18                 So, we will certainly do our best,

         19  based on your testimony and the input that we've

         20  gotten from you today and on other days, to press

         21  them to do the right thing for our kids. This is

         22  just the beginning of our exploration into this

         23  issue, in order to make the situation better.  With

         24  that, there being no other testimony, this Hearing

         25  is closed.
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          2                 (Meeting adjourned)

          3                 (Following written testimony was read

          4  into the read)

          5  WRITTEN TESTIMONY OF:

          6  MIGDALIA ACEVEDO

          7       Good afternoon.  My name is Migdalia Acevedo

          8  and I am the parent of a ten year old child in

          9  special education.  I'd like to begin by thanking

         10  this committee for affording parents the opportunity

         11  to speak.  Bringing issues to the public light is

         12  always the first step towards resolution of any

         13  kind. Councilwoman Moskowitz has been tireless in

         14  these efforts and those of us who spend our daily

         15  lives advocating for our children recognize the

         16  importance of these opportunities.

         17                 Before I go on, I want to point out

         18  that this year my son has missed approximately 30

         19  school days due to bussing problems; approximately

         20  60 school days due to school related safety issues,

         21  and multiple ER visits, resulting from injuries

         22  obtained on school premises.

         23                 I have had numerous problems in the

         24  past few years with bussing.  Lateness, no shows,

         25  disrespectful bus drivers/matrons, inappropriate
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          2  sexual advances, verbal assaults, belittling and

          3  humiliation are just some of the problems my son and

          4  I have encountered in the special education bussing

          5  system. By necessity, I have had to school myself in

          6  law, process and advocacy just to be able to

          7  safeguard my son's well- being in the special

          8  education system.  I cannot say I have met with

          9  success. I can only say it's an ongoing arduous

         10  struggle.  Patience, perseverance, and tirelessness

         11  have become the tools of my new trade.

         12                 Two years ago I had a bus driver

         13  against whom I filed six OPT complaints.  Opt never

         14  changed the driver, nor was he disciplined, to my

         15  knowledge.  Most recently, on March 31st, my son's

         16  newly assigned bus driver insulted, screamed, and

         17  verbally assaulted me in the worse way possible in

         18  front of my son, my place of employment and

         19  passerbys.

         20                 He called me an idiot, a jerk and

         21  worse because I was not downstairs at the exact time

         22  he arrived.  I arrived approximately one minute

         23  after he did.  He told me if I was not downstairs

         24  the next time he would leave my son at the police

         25  station.  He was on the phone with his bus company
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          2  when I arrived downstairs complaining about my not

          3  having been there when he arrived.  When he saw me

          4  he handed me the phone to speak to his dispatcher.

          5  I told the dispatcher, a female with HOYT that her

          6  bus driver was extremely disrespectful.  While I was

          7  speaking to her the bus driver continued to yell and

          8  insult me.  The dispatcher was unconcerned.  She did

          9  not even acknowledge the bus driver's verbal abuse.

         10  She simply told me I must be downstairs when he

         11  arrived.  I explained that he did not have steady

         12  arrival times and mentioned that just that Monday he

         13  had arrived an hour and a half after the anticipated

         14  time.  She again repeated I must be downstairs when

         15  he arrived.  I handed the cell phone back to the

         16  driver after which he continued to insult me and

         17  call me names.  I told him I would be contacting the

         18  Chancellor regarding his behavior.  He told me he

         19  did not care if I contacted the Mayor.  He then

         20  called me an idiot and a total jerk, slammed the bus

         21  doors and zoomed away.  My son and I were both

         22  shaken, humiliated and upset.

         23                 That same afternoon I e- mailed

         24  Chancellor Klein and cc'd Richard Scarpa in the

         25  Office of Pupil Transportation. Mr. Scarpa called me
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          2  to verify that he had received my e- mail. He said

          3  OPT depended on parents filing complaints to weed

          4  out the bad bus drivers.  He told me he would open

          5  an investigation and that the driver would be

          6  suspended during the investigation.  He told me all

          7  OPT investigators were former police officers and

          8  that one would contact me soon.  In the mean time my

          9  son would be assigned a different driver.

         10                 A few days later I received a call

         11  from Dennis Harrington, an investigator with OPT.

         12  He wanted to verify the events that took place.  He

         13  asked me what I did that made the bus driver so mad.

         14    A strange question I thought, as if there were

         15  circumstances that existed under which bus drivers

         16  had a right to speak to parents in this fashion.  I

         17  told him I had done nothing except arrive downstairs

         18  one minute after he did.  He mentioned the

         19  difficulty of stationing in a work area such as

         20  mine.  I told him I understood and had no problem

         21  arriving on time if the bus driver could manage to

         22  stick to a time frame.  I reminded him that I too

         23  was working and could not wait indefinitely.  I told

         24  him the bus driver had my number.  He could call me

         25  if there was a problem with the arrival time.  I had
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          2  mentioned that I never yelled or screamed at the bus

          3  driver when he was late, which was often.  I didn't

          4  think he should yell, scream or insult me.  Mr.

          5  Harrington asked me a few more questions and then

          6  said I would be hearing from them.

          7                 On April 12th, I picked up my son

          8  from school because I was already on school premises

          9  due to an earlier meeting.  As I waited for him to

         10  exit the school building I noticed that the bus

         11  driver I had reported was back at work and on the

         12  same bus!  No one had contacted me regarding the

         13  outcome. When I got home that day I just happened to

         14  have a letter in the mailbox from the investigator

         15  on the case, stating that they were unable to

         16  collaborate my allegations and reminding me that the

         17  bus driver could not park in my work area.  He again

         18  pointed out that I worked in a high security area

         19  and the bus driver could not dally there.  He

         20  mentioned that any tickets the bus driver received

         21  were his responsibility.  He then said the driver

         22  had been employed for 22 years and had never had a

         23  complaint filed against him.  This, I thought was

         24  adding insult to injury.

         25                 I called OPT to request an alternate
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          2  bus route. OPT told me they had no record of the

          3  complaint in the computer system!  I mentioned names

          4  and specifics and after a pause I was told that I

          5  would have to speak to the investigator Dennis

          6  Harrington if I wanted a bus change.  I then spoke

          7  to Mr. Harrington and told him that unsubstantiated

          8  or not, I did not think any parent should have to

          9  entrust their child's safety to someone they

         10  considered unsafe.  OPT's inability to collaborate

         11  the events did not obliterate the fact that they had

         12  occurred.  I mentioned that Mr. Scarpa had suggested

         13  I speak to the bussing coordinator for alternate

         14  arrangements, in previous conversations, and I did

         15  want to avail myself of that option. Mr. Harrington

         16  agreed to re- assign my son.

         17                 I then e- mailed Mr. Scarpa,

         18  explaining what had happened and asking him to

         19  please provide me with a complaint number for the

         20  March 31st incident.  I also asked him to identify

         21  who exactly OPT had interviewed to collaborate my

         22  complaint.  To my knowledge, neither my son, nor the

         23  other children present on the bus, when the incident

         24  occurred, nor the security personnel at my place of

         25  employment, who habitually see me arrive to pick up
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          2  my son, were interviewed.  Who then did OPT

          3  interview?  To this day I have not received an

          4  answer to that e- mail.

          5                 Several of my neighbors also have

          6  special needs children who get bussed to school

          7  every day.  They tell me that they too have

          8  encountered many of the same problems I have with

          9  bussing.  They tell me they have filed numerous

         10  complaints with OPT to no avail.  I think its worth

         11  noting that there have been other, non- bussing

         12  related incidents I have filed complaints about but,

         13  as always, the official response is "UNFOUNDED".

         14  Some of these complaints involved injuries sustained

         15  by my son as a by product of corporal punishment by

         16  school staff.

         17                 There appears to be a pervasive

         18  culture of looking the other way in these

         19  situations, of rationalization, or minimization, or

         20  displacing blame, of collusion among those

         21  implicated in these complaints.  The matrons often

         22  do not guard the child's safety or rights, enabling

         23  irresponsible bus drivers to continue with their

         24  wreckless and damaging behavior by virtue of silence

         25  or collaboration.  This is a very grave problem.
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          2                 Although I'm grateful for the

          3  opportunities this committee creates for parents to

          4  speak, all these efforts will be for naught if

          5  something is not done.  To that end, I ask that this

          6  Council enact legislation requiring phone calls to

          7  bussing dispatchers and OPT to be recorded so that

          8  the complaints parents file can be substantiated

          9  more easily.  I ask that this Council enact

         10  legislation requiring investigators to provide

         11  complainants with a written investigation trail so

         12  that complainants have a clear idea of how the

         13  investigation was conducted and who was interviewed.

         14                 In the eight years I have been

         15  advocating for my son's rights which are violated on

         16  an almost daily basis, I have yet to see any

         17  permanent and effective outcomes.  Business

         18  continues as usual; situations continue to arise;

         19  and parents continue without resolution.  Many say

         20  that as parents, we are not involved enough, we do

         21  not complain enough, we do not advocate enough.  I

         22  say that when we become involved, barriers are

         23  erected; when we complain, our complaints get

         24  labeled "unsubstantiated" and when we advocate, our

         25  pleas seemingly fall on deaf ears.
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          2                 I find that we, as parents, are

          3  consistently and legally held to a higher standard

          4  than the people who service our children.  When my

          5  son arrives home with bruises, injuries and torn

          6  clothing from school it does not warrant

          7  investigation.  I am told that he sustained the

          8  injuries and torn clothing in an effort to guard his

          9  safety by school personnel or that they are self

         10  inflicted.

         11                 If I sent my son to school in said

         12  condition, I would be either reported, arrested, my

         13  son removed from my care or all of the above.  If I

         14  offered the same excuse, I would be laughed at,

         15  sneered at or worse.  I think the emerging picture

         16  is clear, as is the need for legislative

         17  intervention.  My deepest thanks- Attentively,

         18  Migdalia Acevedo.

         19                 (Hearing concluded at 1:30 p.m.)
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          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CHERYL MILLER, do hereby certify

         10  that the foregoing is a true and accurate transcript

         11  of the within proceeding.

         12                 I further certify that I am not

         13  related to any of the parties to this action by

         14  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         15  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         16                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         17  set my hand this 19th day of April 2005.
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          9            I, CHERYL MILLER, do hereby certify the

         10  aforesaid to be a true and accurate copy of the

         11  transcription of the audio tapes of this hearing.
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